






·1

·2

·3

·4

·5

·6

·7

·8· · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TAPE-RECORDED

·9· · · · · · ·PUBLIC HEARING OF THE

10· · · · · · · FALLON CITY COUNCIL

11

12

13· · · · · · · · · · MEETING

14· · · · · · · · ·JUNE 19, 2018

15

16· · · · · ·ITEM REGARDING MARIJUANA

17

18

19

20

21· ·Litigation Services Job Number:· 742736-C

22

23

24

25

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 2
  MR. TEDFORD:· Has the agenda been posted  

·3·

·4·

·1·

·2· · in complaince with NRS?

  · MR. GARY:· Yes. They have.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thanks, Gary. Appreciate 
that.

·5· ·There's two places on the agenda for public

·6· ·comment. Public comment is for items general in

·7· ·nature and not for anything on the agenda tonight.

·8· ·Discussion can be held, but no decision can be

·9· ·made. Is there any items for public comments
10· ·tonight?

11· · · · Okay. This is item three. The second time is

12· ·item eight. So we'll go to item four, approval of

13· ·council meeting minutes for April 3rd and April

14· ·17th. Council has had an opportunity to review

15· ·those minutes. Are there any corrections or

16· ·additions to those minutes?

17· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· Mr. Mayor, I have no

18· ·corrections or additions [inaudible]. I'll make a

19· ·motion to approve the minutes for April 3rd.

20· · · · MS. FROST:· I'll second.

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We have a motion from Councilman

22· ·Erickson to approve the April 3rd and April 17th

23· ·  minutes. We have a second from Councilwoman

24· ·Frost. All in favor?

25·  ·

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 3
 · · · GROUP:· Aye.

 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· None opposed. Motion carries.

·9·

·1·

·2·

·3· ·The minutes have been approved for the 3rd and the

·4· ·17th of this year. Item five is for approval of

·5· ·warrants. You've also had an opportunity to

·6· ·review the accounts payable, payroll and customer

·7· ·deposit warrants. I'll entertain a motion

·8· ·to approve those.

· MS. FROST:· I move to approve the
warrants.

10· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· I'll second.

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We have a motion from

12· ·Councilwoman Frost, a second from Councilman

13· ·Richardson to approve accounts payable payroll and

14· ·customer deposit warrants. All in favor?

15· · · · GROUP:· Aye.

16· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· None opposed. Motion carries on

17· ·3-0 vote to approve those warrants. The mayor has

18· ·been authorized to sign the same.

19· · · · We go to item six, and before then we're going

20· ·to [inaudible] legal administrative

21· ·director of the city is going to give a little

22· ·introduction before, before we head into the

23· ·public hearing tonight. Robert?

24·  · MR. ROBERT:· Thank you, Mr. Mayor. I

25· ·appreciate the opportunity to offer perhaps just a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 4

·6·

·1· ·few thoughts, in order to summarize the

·2· ·procedure that has previously occurred in this

·3· ·matter and set the record for tonight's public

·4· ·hearing, and then ultimately the council's

·5· ·deliberation relating to bill number 780.

  · As the council is fully aware, the people

·7· ·of the state of Nevada passed Question 2 at the

·8· ·general election in November of 2016. Question 2

·9· ·legalized the adult use of recreational marijuana

10· ·under certain statutorily prescribed circumstances.

11· · · · It's important to note that as a component of

12· ·Question 2, neither this city council nor any other

13· ·city council or County commission in the state of

14· ·Nevada can criminalize the adult use or possession

15· ·of recreational marijuana, as long as it's done

16· ·within the limits and constraints prescribed by

17· ·chapter 453D of the Nevada revised statutes. I

18· ·think that's an important point to make clear as we

19· ·begin the discussion tonight.

20·  · And that is the Fallon city council is

21· ·not considering tonight whether the adult use or

22· ·possession of recreational marijuana should be

23· ·legal within the city of Fallon.

24· · · · That question has already been answered by the

25· ·people of the state of Nevada and the Fallon city

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 5
·1· ·council has no authority to change it.

·2· · · · What is within the council's legislative

·3· ·authority to consider and what will be considered

·4· ·tonight is whether marijuana facilities and certain

·5· ·medical marijuana establishments should be allowed

·6· ·within the city of Fallon.

·7· · · · Question 2, specifically left this issue to

·8· ·local governments, in our case the city council, to

·9· ·decide and to deal with through zoning regulations

10· ·and licensing requirements.

11· · · · Zoning regulations and licensing requirements

12· ·are accomplished legislatively for the adoption of

13· ·ordinances, which is the path that this city

14· ·council has set out on.

15·  · The council began that legislative process

16· ·on this issue with a public hearing back on May

17· ·1st, 2018. At that hearing the council heard

18· ·comments and testimony and received information

19· ·from various presenters and other information.

20· · · · At the conclusion of that hearing the council

21· ·gave city staff direction to draft a proposed

22· ·ordinance prohibiting, through zoning regulations,

23· ·certain marijuana facilities and medical marijuana

24· ·establishments within the city of Fallon.

25·  ·The council's direction did

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 6
·1· ·not constitute any final action and was only the

·2· ·initial step in this legislative process that

·3· ·should conclude tonight with the possible adoption

·4· ·of an ordinance.

·5· · · · Staff did prepare the ordinance as directed,

·6· ·and that ordinance was introduced as bill number

·7· ·780 at the council's regular meeting, which was

·8· ·held on May 15th, 2018. The public hearing on that

·9· ·ordinance was set for tonight.

10· · · · Tonight city council must deliberate in order

11· ·to determine the actual final legislation it wants

12· ·to approve. Tonight's hearing is not an appeal.

13· ·There has been no council action from which to

14· ·appeal.

15· · · · Instead, the council will hold a public

16· ·hearing where members of the public, those present

17· ·will have the opportunity to present comment,

18· ·information and testimony as it relates to this

19· ·ordinance.

20·  · And after that, hearing is concluded the

21· ·council will proceed to deliberate and consider

22· ·adoption of an ordinance. The ordinance as

23· ·proposed, or excuse me, the ordinance maybe adopted

24· ·as proposed and introduced or amended in any way

25· ·the council sees fit, including legislating a zone

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 7

·4·

·7·

·1· ·or zones within which recreational marijuana

·2· ·facilities and/or medical marijuana establishments

·3· ·could be allowed.

  · City staff is present tonight willing to

·5· ·attempt to answer any questions that the council

·6· ·may have.

  · But because this is a purely legislative

·8· ·matter left to the sole discretion of the city

·9· ·council staff will have no comments or

10· ·recommendations to offer to the council regarding

11· ·how the council should act.

12·  · With that introduction, Mr. Mayor, I will

13· ·yield the floor back to you, to describe the

14· ·conduct of agenda item six and seven.

15· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. As those of you who are

16· ·here May 1st, we only see about 80 in here so

17· ·I'm sorry that you, some of you have to stand.

18·  · I'm going to go through some general

19· ·procedural reminders, of how we will conduct

20· ·  this hearing tonight and remind the council

21· ·  if you don't see this red button on that,

22· ·one, you're not recording and two, you're not being

23· ·heard out there.

24·  · If you come to the podium and

25· ·you intend to make a comment, speak loudly into the

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 8

·3·

·1· ·microphone. Give you full name, who you

·2· ·represent, if you do, and your address.

  · This is all being recorded, so it

·4· ·isn't just so others outside can hear. This

·5· ·isn't a court of law so there's no strict rules of

·6· ·evidence that apply or any procedure that applies.

·7· ·Meetings conducted here are orderly and they're

·8· ·civilized. That's the way I've done it for --

·9· ·for many years and that's how we're going to do it

10· ·tonight.

11·  · May 1st was a fine meeting. So you,

12· ·you know that [inaudible] hear tonight. Your

13· ·comments are addressed to the council through me,

14· ·and they're also addressed to the audience through

15· ·me.

16·  · The council is not subject to any

17· ·questions. The council may have questions of you

18· · [inaudible]. Try to keep your comments as

19· ·succinct as possible. I don't have the time limit,

20·    as mayor.

21· · · · There is one in the state of Nevada, I have

22· ·never held to it. I rarely use my gavel though I

23·   ·might tonight, and it'll shock everybody up

24·   ·here like it does when I do it. But just try to

25·   ·keep your comments, as short as possible and on

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 9

·2·

·7·

·1· ·point.

· And if they're the same thing I may tell

·3  you to move along, someone already said that

·4· ·or whatever. I'm trying not to be rude but I'm

·5· ·trying to be fair to everybody who's behind you.

·6· ·You should mute your telephones.

  · You can mute them, you don't have to

·8· ·silence them. You may want to read when someone's

·9· ·trying to get hold of your family.

10·  · On item six that we're going to get to,

11· ·I'm going to read it and then we're going to hear

12· ·  from those who are opposed like we did

13· ·  last time we were there, and then we'll hear

14· ·those who are for it.

15· · · · We'll hear those who are neutral. I will get

16· ·some general comments and then we'll end six. And

17· ·it's just the public hearing, okay? Everybody just

18· ·gets to talk.

19·  · Then we'll move to seven and then

20· ·  I'll go through the rules of seven, but,

21· ·  that's when the council gets to deliberate and

22· ·decide what they want to do.

23·  · They may have some questions of you, but

24· ·  that's the time that the council gets to

25· ·discuss and see what they want to do about this

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 10

·5·

·9·

·1· ·issue. It moves real smoothly here. So if

·2· ·we keep those rules in mind we'll do it

·3· ·again smoothly tonight. So let's just be nice,

·4· ·be courteous.

  · No mumbling when someone talks, okay? I

·6· ·won't allow that. I'll just tell you, 

·7· ·let's be quiet and let's be fair and let's be

·8· ·like Fallon is, okay?

  · So we'll move to the public hearing for 
bill

10· ·number 780, an ordinance amending the Fallon muni

11· ·code to prohibit marijuana cultivation facilities,

12· ·marijuana testing facilities, marijuana product

13· ·manufacturing facilities, marijuana distributors,

14· ·retail, marijuana stores, non-medical, medical

15· ·marijuana independent testing labs, medical

16· ·marijuana cultivation facilities, and facilities

17· ·for the production of edible marijuana products or

18· ·marijua- -- marijuana infused products in the city

19· ·of Fallon, and for other matters related there too,

20· ·for discussion only.

21· · · · So at this time we'll hear comments opposed to

22· ·the adoption of this ordinance. Ardea, why don't

23· ·you start?

24·  · MS. CANEPA-ROTOLI:· Thank you, mayor. 

25· ·  Members of the council, mayor, I appreciate you

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 11

·3·

·8·

·1· ·again having us here tonight to hear this topic.

·2· ·been before you a few times now.

· I kind of just wanted to take us back to,

·4· ·I guess, how we ended up here. I

·5· ·think, Mr. Erquiaga did a wonderful job

·6· ·about kind of giving a brief history, but, my

·7· ·clients -- let me start.

  · I represent MMR&D the owners of Green

·9· ·Cross Farmacy. My name is Ardea Canepa-Rotoli. 

10· ·I am with the firm Maddox, Segerblom & Canepa in

11· ·Reno, 10403 Double R Boulevard, Reno, Nevada,

12· ·89521.

13·  · We wanted to get in front of the council

14· ·to have the Green Cross Farmacy get a letter to be

15· ·able to finalize their provisional licensing from

16· ·the state for their recreational. They have the

17· ·provisional licensing contingent upon that zoning.

18·  · So we were hoping to get in front of the

19· ·council with a very narrow issue as to their

20· ·location. I understand that we're well beyond

21· ·that now and we're dealing with the ordinance

22· ·  before us,but I think that that is

23· ·to a point where this ordinance is overbroad.

24·  · So we're hoping that -- we understand

25· ·that the ordinance was voted on to at least be

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 12

·7·

·1· ·drafted, but we're hoping that the council can

·2· ·reconsider in actually voting this ordinance

·3· ·through, and reconsider how broad it is, 

·4· ·the vacuum of it, and at least for my clients

·5· ·reconsider the recreational dispensary for their

·6· ·location.

  · Because that's kind of what we were

·8· ·beginning with to get in front of the council 

·9· ·to consider. And so this ordinance we just feel is

10· ·  extremely overbroad at least in that regard.

11·   ·It kind of went into a vacuum beyond what

12· ·we were hoping to get in front of the council for.

13· ·But I understand we're here and so I'm going to

14· ·talk about this bill.

15·  · The May 1st meeting I know -- and

16· ·again, thank you so much for sitting and listening.

17· ·I know you're here for three hours and you heard a

18· ·lot of information from both sides and there was a

19· ·lot for you to consider.

20· · · · I hope that we're not keeping you here for

21· ·three hours again tonight. I am not going to rehash

22· ·what we talked about at the last, council

23· ·meeting. I want to just really address some of

24· ·the issues that came up at the end.

25·  · The first being that I know, some of

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 13

·4·

·8·

·1· ·you really have a concern about that recreational

·2· ·marijuana and marijuana in general is against

·3· ·federal law.

  · And we talked about that. But I

·5· ·wanted to mention that while the council has

·6· ·approved medical marijuana facility, medical is

·7· ·also against federal law.

  · So I think the state has made

·9· ·it clear, the people of the state have made it

10· ·clear that they want, marijuana, medical and

11· ·recreational.

12·  · The city of Fallon I know supported 

13· ·  that medical marijuana was allowed the facility

14· ·and we have that now.

15· · · · And so while it is against federal law,

16·   ·there's a lot of things, and I know there's 

17· ·  others here in the room tonight that are going

18· ·  to talk more in depth on the federal issue,and

19· ·have some really good insight and information and

20· ·you guys can ask questions of.

21· · · · But I just want you to consider that because,

22· ·  the city of Fallon has kind of already jumped

23· ·that hurdle on allowing something that is against

24· ·federal law.

25·  · The other thing I do want to mention that

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 14
·1· ·I know we did touch on this at the last meeting but

·2· ·I think it's so important for the safety of this

·3· ·community, is the fact that if we do not have a

·4· ·recreational over the counter adult use facility in

·5· ·the city of Fallon, there is going to be a problem

·6· ·with home growth and it's going to be very, very

·7· ·difficult for law enforcement to enforce that

·8· ·issue.

·9· · · · Because if there is a facility, as we've

10· ·talked already, within that 25-mile radius people

11· ·can't do home growth.

12·  · So I think that without having

13·   ·a facility here it's going to open up, 

14· ·neighbors growing, home grows with [inaudible] that

15· ·could start fires, with pesticides that there's no

16· ·control over, with really a difficult to regulate,

17· ·  home grow and what's being sold and

18· ·what's being used for personal use.

19· · · · And so I think by having this recreational

20·   ·facility here, dispensary, and again, I'm

21· ·kind of focusing on the dispensary because that's

22· ·what my clients were here for in the beginning.

23·  · It's really going to help law enforcement

24· ·  here to help with that home grow, illegal

25· ·home grow problem. Before I kind of turn it

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 15

·3·

·9·

·1· ·over to others, I just wanted to talk about the

·2· ·other issue that I think is kind of difficult.

· To be honest, it was difficult for me to
grasp

·4· ·years back before I kind of got into this industry

·5· ·on a legal standpoint, is the difference between

·6· ·medical recreational and, you know, the adult use,

·7· ·the over-the-counter on how it really integrates

·8· ·together.
    The CBD oils, he medical use that

10· ·     people are using, and not just people, I

11· ·actually use CBD oil for my dog who is riddled with

12· ·  she's going to be 14. She's riddled with, 

13· ·fatty tumors and the vet actually said there's CBD

14· ·oil out there that can really help with cancers in

15· ·dogs.

16· · · · And so I have had her on that for pain

17· ·management for not only the cancer, but also for --

18· ·she's 14 so she has arthritis and such. But I

19· ·have noticed a huge difference on her since I've

20· ·been using the CBD oil for that.

21· · · · I wouldn't be able to go get a medical card

22· ·for that and go purchase her, you know, purchase my

23· ·dog that, so I'm able to go to a -- a recreational

24· ·  over the counter facility and purchase that.

25· · · · And so there's going to be times, and again,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 16

·5·

·8·

·1· ·we have nurses here tonight that are going to get

·2· ·more into the medical uses and how that

·3· ·adult use over the counter crosses over with the

·4· ·medical.

  ·But I think it's an important thing that I

·6· ·know it's hard to get over that

·7· ·line, but there is really a crossover.

 There's a lot of people who either can't get a

·9· ·medical card, can't afford to get the medical card,

10· ·  can't get a recommendation from a doctor

11· ·because maybe the doctor doesn't believe that

12· ·there's enough studies out there for MS, for

13· ·epilepsy, but we know, studies out there, in

14· ·fact there was the NBC, I don't know if any of you

15· ·  saw it, but, The Growing Promise.

16·  · NBC did a study recently, a whole show on

17· ·it, that talks about how effective it is for

18· ·epilepsy and MS. But doctors may not necessarily

19· ·  provide for a patient to get a card, but

20· ·they're able to go on their own to get into an

21· ·adult use over the counter facility and get that.

22· · · · So I know it's hard. I just ask that you just

23· ·think about and open your minds to the fact

24· ·that there is really a crossover between that

25· ·medical, what they call recreational, it's adult

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 17

·4·

·1· ·use, it's over the counter. Like I said,

·2·  I've now done it for my dog and it's

·3· ·amazing.

  · And if I didn't have that recreational

·5· ·facility, over the counter facility, I wouldn't

·6· ·have that option for her. So, just please keep

·7· ·an open mind. We just don't think that bill

·8· ·number 780 is going to be good for the

·9· ·community.

10·  · We certainly believe it's very

11·   ·overbroad, for what my clients were hoping to

12· ·get in front of the council for in the first place.

13· ·  There's many others here tonight that

14·   ·have come and I'm going to be brief, famous

15· ·last words for an attorney I know.

16·  · But I do want to introduce Senator Tick

17· ·  Segerblom. He's here tonight and so he has a

18· ·few words to say. And again, thank you for you

19· ·guys, for your -- all your time with this issue

20· ·because I know it's been a long process.

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

22· · · · SENATOR SEGERBLOM:· Thank you. I'm Senator

23· ·Segerblom, 700 South 3rd Street, Las Vegas, Nevada.

24· ·  Councilman Erickson may be the only one who

25· ·remembers this, but in 1965 when I was at

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 18

·4·

·1··[inaudible] city high school we played the Greenwave

·2· ·for our state football championship and we won

·3· ·[inaudible].

  · So for -- for those who were born, but 
anyway,

·5· ·I have to make that disclosure. Also I

·6· ·apologize for my face. I had a little skin cancer

·7· ·that I thought was just going to be real simple and

·8· ·turned out it was deeper, but I'm

·9· ·alive so not to worry.
10· · · · I just want to give a little explanation about

11·   ·why we're here. As Ardea said, you know,

12· ·we passed medical in the state constitution back in

13·   ·2000. Then in 2016 the voters approved, 

14· ·recreational marijuana. When we -- the legislature

15· ·have been very active in this issue within the

16· ·state settings.

17·  · We went around the country to see how

18· ·the two programs work, the medical and the

19· ·  recreational. And so we saw in Colorado they

20· ·have two separate counters. They have two separate

21· ·basically products.

22·  · We didn't see any reason for it

23· ·because basically they're the same products. So we

24· ·went to Oregon and we saw there where they've

25· ·  actually merged the two systems. So we

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 19

·3·

·8·

·1· ·didn't have to have two inventories, two growth

·2· ·facilities.

· Everything in this industry is tested

·4· ·from the first day they put the plant in

·5· ·the ground, they have a little barcode on it. It's

·6· ·all regulated. It's tested fully. We have -- we

·7· ·have the best industry in the country.

  · We discovered was there's no

·9· ·purpose in having two separate industries. We

10· ·can just merge the two. And we had the best

11· ·industry in the country, frankly.

12· · · · So the governor, the governor's lead, he

13· ·proposed legislation which we followed, which

14· ·basically put the two programs together as of last

15· ·July 1st.

16·  · And that happened. What we had was we

17· ·had a medical program that had been out there and

18· ·people have had a chance to see it, so you knew

19· ·what you were getting, and we just [inaudible] pull

20· ·the switch and said we increased the taxes and

21· ·said, okay, now it's going to be a combined

22· ·program.

23· · · · Not every city didn't have to do that. You

24· ·  kept just your medical program, you haven't

25· ·gone to recreational, but the reality is it's not

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 20

·2·

·1· ·like you're creating a whole new system.

  · It's basically you're just changing the 
name.

·3· ·It's going to be the same product. It actually

·4· ·gives you more flexibility. More products are

·5· ·available through recreational than medical. At

·6· ·the end of the day it's almost one-year anniversary

·7· ·here coming up July 1st, it sold over a

·8· ·million dollars a day in sales around the

·9· ·state. It's really been a tremendous access.
10· · · · And it's not like people are using it that

11· ·didn't already use it. It's now the people who were

12· ·using it before, who had the home grows, who had

13· ·the stuff from Northern California, from Southern

14· ·Oregon, now they have something that's been fully

15· ·tested.

16· · · · There's no pesticide, there's no fertilizer.

17· ·There's nothing in the program. There's no mites.

18· ·So it really is -- if you're going to use, consume

19· ·something, you want people to consume the best.

20· · · · They can deliver for Reno, [inaudible] just

21· ·approach this, the firm's going to have dispensary.

22· ·It's not like they're not going to be able to --

23· ·people will get it. It's really what you can have

24· ·here for your citizens if you decide to do it.

25· · · · I just wanted to assure you that this is not

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 21
·1· ·like creating the new wheel. This is basically

·2· ·taking the same program and making it what they

·3· ·call recreational, but it just increases the taxes

·4· ·on people that buy recreational and it allows for a

·5· ·broader scope of products. So thank you very much.

·6· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you, Senator. Good luck

·7· ·with that cancer.

·8· · · · SENATOR SEGERBLOM:· I forgot to say my

·9· ·daughter is one of the attorneys, so you have to

10· ·support your daughter, right?

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah. We know who it is. Yes,

12· ·sir.

13·  · MR. SOBEL:· Hello, I'm Ken Sobel. I reside

14· ·at 2152 Crown Hill Road in San Diego, California,

15· ·and I also own property in the Southeast corner of

16· ·  Nevada, in the little area near Tecopa Springs.

17·  · What I've been doing over the last 15

18· ·years primarily is representing our veterans who

19· ·served us recently in the Iraq war and in

20· ·Afghanistan and the troubles that they've

21· ·experienced on their way back with post-traumatic

22· ·stress disorder.

23· · · · And so I actually wrote the petition to

24· ·approve post-traumatic stress disorder as a

25· ·qualifying condition for patients to safely access

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 22
·1· ·for Arizona because they were refusing to do so.

·2· · · · And at that same time I met up with the

·3· ·advocates who were in Nevada and we provided them

·4· ·with a copy of our petition. Fortunately, the

·5· ·legislature then moved forward and quickly adopted

·6· ·PTSD as a qualifying condition in Nevada.

·7· · · · And meanwhile I struggled through another

·8· ·couple of years [inaudible] the department of

·9· ·health services only to win a complete victory.

10· ·Proving that cannabis is the safest and most

11· ·effective really treatment for post-traumatic

12· ·stress disorder that our veterans have suffered

13· ·from.

14· · · · We know that between 22 and 50 veterans or

15· ·active service members commit suicide every single

16· ·day.

17· · · · And what happened with the pharmacology that

18· ·they give to these veterans is under a strong

19· ·warning because it gives us an ideation, elevates

20· ·the level, the ideation of suicide.

21· · · · So in essence you were giving these veterans

22· ·pharmaceutical drugs that were never intended for

23· ·this particular issue, even though those drugs

24· ·elevated the likelihood that that person might

25· ·commit suicide. Fortunately, with cannabis it's

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 23
·1· ·entirely safe.

·2· · · · It's a plant medicine. It was used in Jesus's

·3· ·time. That's what he anointed and others anointed

·4· ·when they describe those aspects of anointing the

·5· ·feet or massaging the feet.

·6· · · · Jesus would travel from one place to another

·7· ·and he'd arrive and they'd offer to anoint the oil

·8· ·for his feet and he would turn around and say, no.

·9· ·I will do that for you. And basically what they're

10· ·doing was [inaudible] was the name for cannabis

11· ·back at the time.

12· · · · And they utilized that by extracting the

13· ·medicine from cannabis using olive oil. This is all

14· ·documented.

15· · · · It's in the Bible. And now we know as of 1996

16· ·they discovered the human endocannabinoid system,

17· ·and now we know that the feet are where they're

18· ·Chuck full of receptors that interact directly with

19· ·cannabis and relieve pain or release suffering and

20· ·all of those things.

21· · · · But I was also asked to comment on something

22· ·that has been in the question, in the minds of many

23· ·folks here. And so that was the question about the

24· ·federal law.

25·  · And so I'm probably in a pretty

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 24
·1· ·good position to respond to this because I worked

·2· ·with and I wrote the bill for the US Virgin Islands

·3· ·and their problem because they're a federal

·4· ·territory.

·5· · · · So that's even more of an important question

·6· ·for them. But it turns out that in 1937 when they

·7· ·first passed prohibition on cannabis, they did it

·8· ·over the AMA's objection.

·9· · · · And 30 years later that tax act was actually

10· ·overturned by the Supreme court by constitutional

11· ·order. And that's when in 1971 they did the

12· ·Controlled Substance Act.

13·  · Well, paragraph 29 of this, 

14· ·controlled substance act specifically says that

15· ·states are entitled to do what they think is best

16· ·for their state when it comes to regulating

17· ·marijuana.

18· · · · And so that's how all 30 states that we have

19· ·now, approximately, have handled this subject.

20· ·We're free to do it within the 10th Amendment, to

21· ·be able to have our own policy on marijuana. And

22· ·that's what the voters approved here in Nevada.

23· · · · Those cases, so I'm trying to remember the

24·   ·name, I believe it was the,the most recent

25· ·case was the White Mountain case that they tried to

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 25
·1· ·take to the Supreme court where the state of

·2· ·Arizona had ruled no it's legal for them to have a

·3· ·medical marijuana system.

·4· · · · That was appealed to the Ninth Circuit and the

·5· ·Ninth Circuit denied it. Another case earlier than

·6· ·that went to the Ninth Circuit, it was denied, and

·7· ·then went to the Supreme Court. So the Supreme

·8· ·Court can say, well, they are going to hear our

·9· ·case because we've got at least four votes.

10· · · · Or we're not -- every time the issue has come

11· ·up where someone's tried to appeal it from the

12· ·Ninth Circuit it's been defeated because the

13· ·Supreme Court doesn't have four votes to overturn

14· ·that.

15· · · · So the law of the land is simple, states have

16· ·a 10th Amendment right to incorporate into their

17· ·own state policy their own marijuana laws, and the

18· ·federal government is not authorized to tell us

19· ·what to do. I don't know if that's clear enough.

20· · · · But so in where we were at in,

21· ·    the territories is that they were federal

22 ··  territories so there weren't really state laws. So

23· ·that was even a little more complicated for them.

24· · · · But even as to them, the territories of Guam

25· ·and Puerto Rico have already established a medical

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 26

·5·

·7·

·1· ·marijuana program. So, I don't know if it's

·2· ·appropriate to take questions if you happen to have

·3· ·any questions on that subject. It's pretty clear at

·4· ·this point.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· They will ask questions if 
they

·6· ·have them, yeah.

  · MR. SOBEL:· But right now the current

·8· ·state is that the federal government has a hands-

·9· ·off approach in accord with a congressional act

10· ·that was passed first in 2014.

11· · · · So they still have federal prohibition in

12· ·place, but since 2014 they've said you can't spend

13· ·any money in a state like Nevada to try to

14· ·interfere with their own regulated program. That

15· ·has been renewed at least 15 times and is in place

16· ·right now.

17·  · So basically the federal position is in

18· ·all the 30 states or almost 30 states and in all

19· ·the territories federal probation doesn't apply.

20· · · · And the next step, there's a bill before

21· ·Congress that President Trump has agreed to support

22· ·which will, again, reiterate the sovereignty of

23· ·each state to decide what it wants to do.

24·  · So my biggest passion as I go back to the

25· ·beginning is there are a lot of veterans who live

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 27

·3·

·7·

·1· ·in this community, as I've began to research the

·2· ·area.

· ·  And the area that I come from in San Diego,

·4· ·38 percent of that entire population is either

·5· ·an active service member, a veteran, or a family

·6· ·member, immediate family member.

    And so this is really a high priority for us.

·8· ·When these heroes come back to home and are

·9· ·suffering the way that they are, to prohibit them

10· ·from being able to legally and safely access this

11· ·is almost cruel, and really in a sense doesn't

12· ·certainly repay them for the service that they gave

13· ·for this country.

14· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· But are they enabled to get a

15· ·medical marijuana card? Is that what you're saying?

16· · · · MR. SOBEL:· No. They can get it but there are

17· ·certain obstacles and obstructions that occur. It's

18· ·some interference, if you like. They're still able

19· ·to get [inaudible].

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· And what's that interference?

21· · · · MR. SOBEL:· Well, some people can't afford the

22· ·medical recommendation that they have to purchase.

23·   ·Some of them, may not have it with them when

24· ·they need to arrive at the dispensary. It's a good

25· ·question, but all cannabis is medical cannabis and

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 28

·3·

·7·

·8·

·1· ·everyone who uses cannabis uses it for a medical

·2· ·reason. The differences in the name-

  · MR. TEDFORD:· This is -- quiet --

·4· ·quiet, please. I'm sorry, you

·5· ·really touch a hardcore in Fallon when you're

·6· ·talking about veterans.

  · MR. SOBEL:· Absolutely.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Probably more so than

·9· ·anywhere, than maybe San Diego. But I have a hard

10· ·time with someone who is a veteran not getting a

11· ·medical marijuana card. Now, it's not our

12· ·responsibility to make sure they take it to a

13· ·facility. You know, I seek the wisdom as to why

14· ·someone doesn't have a medical marijuana card when

15· ·they go to a facility that they need.

16·

17·

  · MR. SOBEL:· Absolutely.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· I'm looking for why

18· ·they are denied a medical marijuana card. Is there

19· ·something in the VA system that says you cannot

20· ·have one --

21·

22·

  · MR. SOBEL:· No. No. No. No. No.

  · MR. TEDFORD:·When you're

23· ·fighting PTSD?

24· · · · MR. SOBEL:· Not at all. Everybody has it. You

25· ·know, just to give you a sense for this, you know,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 29
·1· ·the view is when you go to fulfill a prescription

·2· ·at a pharmacy, you have a prescription, they

·3· ·sometimes prescribe ibuprofen in large doses, for

·4· ·example.

·5· · · · But you can go to the counter and simply

·6· ·purchase aspirin or ibuprofen. The difference is

·7· ·that a thousand people last year died of an

·8· ·overdose of aspirin and not a single person has

·9· ·ever died from an overdose of cannabis. But to your

10· ·point --

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· But you're getting the same

12· ·product at the facility here, whether you have a me

13· ·-- a medical marijuana card or you're getting a

14· ·recreation.

15· · · · MR. SOBEL:· Exactly.

16· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· [Inaudible].

17· · · · MR. SOBEL:· That's right. The supply chain is

18· ·  definitely intact and it's both for medical

19· ·and it's for adult use. The difference is that in

20· ·adult use where most people carry their state

21· ·issued ID, whether it's usually a driver's license,

22· ·but sometimes an ID card, is it' stays there in

23· ·your pocket.

24· · · · So it facilitates the ease in which you're

25·   ·able to access it. That's my point. So I 

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 30

·5·

·7·

·9·

·1· ·support an adult process where if you're 21 and

·2· ·older, I mean, you don't have to be 21 and older to

·3· ·buy aspirin and that's more likely to kill you than

·4· ·other things.

 · MR. TEDFORD:· Well, either way here in Nevada,

·6· ·you got to be 21 or older --

  · MR. SOBEL:· I'm sorry. I didn't say 21? I

·8· ·meant to say 21.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah. You were saying 
something

10· ·about ease of access. Here you have to be 21 or

11· ·older either way. Medical or recreationally.

12· · · · MR. SOBEL:· Right. So that's --

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We have a record that we're

14· ·trying to keep clean, so either way you have to be

15· ·21. I think you have a question here.

16·  · MR. ERICKSON:· I have a statement.

17· ·  I think we're going to hear a lot this --

18· ·this subject matter from many members here about,

19· ·  marijuana in general, but please remember

20· ·that's not exactly what we're deciding here or even

21· ·our issue.

22·  ·I know a bunch of people are

23· ·going to come up here and say the benefits of using

24· ·marijuana and recreational marijuana and then we're

25· ·going to have people that are opposed to it, how it

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 31

·4·

·9·

·1· ·impacts community and kind of what brand

·2· ·it puts on our city and especially with

·3· ·it being on our main street here.

  · So, you know, to talk about the

·5· ·legitimacy or the positive or the negative, impact,

·6· ·impacts of recreational marijuana I don't think

·7· ·is important. I think what's important is what

·8· ·Robert just pointed out, what's in front of us.

  · We're not deciding recreational marijuana

10· ·tonight. So I just wanted to put that out there

11· ·when we have people that are going to go on long

12·   ·tangents about how bad it is or how good it

13· ·is. I, you know, that's not what we're really

14· ·deciding. So I hope that helps.

15· · · · MR. SOBEL:· And so we never encourage anyone

16· ·who hasn't become to the point where either a

17· ·doctor or a friend or anyone else has recommended

18· ·for their personal, physical or illness to do

19· ·anything at all.

20· · · · What happens with ordinances like this is it

21· ·prevents the 55 percent of the people that wanted

22· ·it to be available in a sense over the counter,

23· ·which is the way I look at it, and the 45 percent

24· ·that said we don't want to, to the 45 percent we

25· ·don't want them to feel compelled to do anything.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 32
·1· · · · And we feel that, you know, you can educate

·2· ·your kids because they'll go to college and they'll

·3· ·Google it and they'll find what I'm telling you

·4· ·because it's available.

·5· · · · And it's the fact that you having a human

·6· ·endocannabinoid system, all of us who are sitting

·7· ·here have one. We produce the same molecule from

·8· ·our own body and we end up in a situation where we

·9· ·need to supplement that.

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We're not talking about going

11· ·into college, we're talking about here in the city

12·   ·of Fallon. So what else do you have to

13· ·tell us about that?

14· · · · MR. SOBEL:· That was pretty much it. And I

15· ·just wanted to make sure we covered the federal

16· ·portion of it because I'd understood it

17· ·[inaudible]. And so I'm happy that you got to hear

18· ·all that.

19· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you very much for

20· ·your testimony. I appreciate it.

21· · · · MS. CANEPA-ROTOLI:· I just wanted to make

22· ·clear clarification for the record, because you

23· ·wanted to make a clear record. It's actually 18

24· ·and older for medical, 21 and older --

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. 18 and older for medical.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 33

·2·

·5·

·7·

·1· ·Thank you. I appreciate that.

  · MR. GILBERT:· Hello, Joey Gilbert, for the

·3· ·record. Council and mayor, thank you for letting me

·4· ·appear tonight.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· I need your address and who 
you

·6· ·represent?

  · MR. GILBERT:· Joey Gilbert representing

·8· ·myself. 201 West Liberty Street, Suite 210

·9· ·Reno, Nevada, 89501.

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· You must be an attorney.

11· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

12· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Liberty Street is [inaudible]

13· ·but attorneys on Liberty Street.

14· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Very true, sir. Liberty Street

15· ·or justice. And you know, so I just want to be

16· ·briefing that I came out here because I thought

17· ·  this was just for the support of the

18· ·dispensary and I didn't think there was a

19· ·moratorium coming.

20·  · I've now been working in this

21· ·industry now since 2013, since the governor signed

22· ·  it. As soon as I got involved, my mother, much

23· ·like a lot of the people in this room called me up

24· ·and said, son, what are you doing? You're going to

25· ·be disbarred. Don't touch that.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 34
 · · · And I said, mom, it's state law. It's here.

·5·

·8·

·1·

·2· ·And so what I would just come in and say -- say

·3· ·like, caution yourself a little bit. Listen, the

·4· ·world didn't stop. 

·    You know, marijuana is not the devil. It's not

·6· ·going to hurt anybody. It has to be

·7· ·regulated. It absolutely has to be taxed.
   
  · But the beauty of what we're doing here in the

·9· ·state and what these special use licenses do, these

10· ·privileged licenses, chief, if one of these guys

11· ·screws up you get their license so fast their head

12· ·spins.

13· · · · And that -- and that's what we need to get,

14· ·everyone needs to get, you know, just try and

15· ·understand. Because marijuana is here. Marijuana is

16· ·here in this County, it's in this city--

17· ·absolutely.

18· · · · Everyone in this room know someone they can

19·   ·reach out to, or someone that's been involved

20· ·in that, or the chief I'm sure knows more than

21· ·everyone. But at the end of the day, it's here.

22· · · · What I'm saying, what I'm going to encourage

23·   ·you to do is to tax it, regulate it, put

24· ·you folks in charge of where it goes and put you

25·   ·folks in charge of who gets

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 35
·1· ·those licenses.

·2· · · · And if they screw up, gone. That quick. And so

·3· ·what I would like to say is, listen, ghost

·4· ·patients, they brought up veterans.

·5· · · · Why can't they get those cards? I'll tell you

·6· ·why. I don't want to be designated that I have

·7· ·PTSD. I don't want to lose my kids. I don't want to

·8· ·lose my car. I don't want to lose my job. When you

·9· ·get labeled like something like that, everyone

10· ·looks at you funny.

11· · · · I have PTSD. I have a traumatic brain injury

12· ·from my fighting days. I'm not going to get all

13· ·personal up here, but I don't want to have to get a

14· ·medical card. If I want to get something that's no

15· ·different than alcohol or cigarettes, keep it away

16· ·from our kids and teenagers, dammit, for sure.

17· · · · I'm sorry; I'm not a big fan of that. But as

18· ·long as we're regulating it and we've got the

19· ·people that we trust, lawmakers, keeping an eye on

20· ·things, this is Nevada. Gaming, alcohol, it's been

21· ·regulated.

22·  · And out here I believe you guys would do

23·   ·a fine job, you know. You get to decide

24· ·  where these things go. You get to

25· ·decide who gets them. And if they screw up this,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 36

·2·

·7·

·1· ·not much, it's gone.
 
 · And so I would just caution you to give these

·3· ·people a chance. They've worked so hard; they're

·4· ·following state law. And the last

·5· ·thing I wanted to bring up this most important,

·6· ·this isn't something that Trump's going to sign.

  · And just so you guys know, I did work for

·8· ·Mr. Trump. You usually can't say that in the state

·9· ·these days.

10·  · MR. TEDFORD:· You talk to us not

11· ·the audience.

12· · · · MR. GILBERT:· I'm sorry, I'm just letting

13· ·everybody know. I did work for Mr. Trump. I spent a

14· ·lot of time on his campaign. I've been assured that

15· ·they're going to sign this act. And this is a bill

16· ·in Congress right now.

17·  · It's actually put forth by, what is her

18· ·name? I call her Pocahontas. Senator Elizabeth

19· ·Warren. Okay. So the 10th Amendment through

20· ·Entrusting States Act. What will it do?

21· · · · When this gets signed by the president, it

22· ·will make sure that any person acting in compliance

23· ·with state law relating to the manufacture or

24· ·production, possession, distribution, dispensation,

25· ·administration, or delivery of marijuana is no

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 37

·2·

·7·

·1· ·longer an offense.

 It's an amendment to the Controlled Substances

·3· ·Act. By the time these things are open, this will

·4· ·be signed. I'm sure of it. I would just let you

·5· ·guys know that it's been moving across the

·6· ·country.

  · America supports cannabis. I would just ask

·8· ·you to caution yourselves. You have the ultimate

·9· ·control here. Let these people get going and if

10· ·there's a problem, you can remove it. The

11· ·stigmatism is not what you think anymore.

12· · · · There's a lot of good people that need access

13· ·to this. And I don't agree that everyone uses it

14· ·for medical reasons.

15· · · · I use -- I believe that some people use it

16· ·just because it's an escape for them just like

17· ·alcohol is, just like a cigarette is. Just like the

18· ·prescription drugs are killing our kids across the

19· ·country.

20·  · Cannabis is not harmful. It's not, you

21· ·know, addictive. There's all kinds of

22· ·properties. I'm not going to revisit that because

23· ·you've asked us not to, but I'm just going to say

24· ·it's not the boogeyman anymore.

25· · · · Please don't shut it out. You have all the

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 38

·2·

·5·

·6·

·1· ·control, regulate it and tax it. Thank you.

  MR. TEDFORD:· I'm not sure where to start. You

·3· ·started with -- excuse me, just a

·4· ·moment.
 MR. GILBERT:· Sure.

MR. TEDFORD:· Starting with money. And I've

·7· ·been criticized for not wanting the revenue that

·8· ·came from this. But I'm more concerned

·9· ·about my community than I'm revenue.

10·

11·

  · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

 · MR. TEDFORD:· And then we went to helping

12· ·people who don't want to get a medical card because

13· ·they don't want to have a stigma of -- or lose

14·   ·their children over having PTSD. I can

15· ·understand that.

16· · · · And then we got to rely on somebody in

17· ·  Congress, and believe me, I don't believe

18· ·federal law is the panacea here. That's not going

19· ·to tell me what -- how -- I don't vote, just so you

20· ·know.

21·  · They all know; they were here. That's not

22· ·the panacea to me what the federal government is

23· ·going to tell me, any more than anybody else tells

24· ·me how we should run the city of Fallon.

25· · · · So, I certainly wouldn't rely on what

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 39

·5·

·6·

·9·

·1· ·someone in the federal government said a bill's

·2· ·going to be like somewhere down the road. And

·3· ·you've certainly been doing your job long enough to

·4· ·know that.

  · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· How that may change. who

·7· ·would ever thought we were sitting down in North

·8· ·Korea?

  · MR. GILBERT:· Absolutely, sir. Agreed.

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. So I don't know what might

11· ·get done down there in the next, you know, year. So

12· ·  let's start with the money.

13·  · The commissioners in this County,

14· ·  who I know as friends and I believe in,

15· ·  and I believe they ban this in their County for

16· ·a good reason, I think. I don't know what it is

17·   ·entirely. They banned medical and

18· ·recreational.

19·  · And the way the setup, I read it

20· ·to you all last time, I don't understand how under

21·   ·the plan that the state set up they get

22· ·88,000 in revenue from the sale of marijuana.

23·  · We at least have

24· ·medical and we get 12,000. So you don't come in

25· ·here unless you know that and talk to me about

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 40

·3·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·revenue. So we put 3 percent on this or whatever in

·2· ·some small franchise or whatever fee.

 It's not revenue; it's about how I perceive my

·4· ·community and what these folks vote

·5· ·tonight about money. And so I'm not going to fault

·6· ·them either way. You looked at me; she's in a

·7· ·[inaudible].

  · MR. GILBERT:· Sorry.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Any more than how the

10· ·commission voted. And they got a whole lot more

11· ·money than we have.

12·  · And these folks at least saw that they

13· ·felt medical was necessary in the community, maybe

14· ·to help the PTSD person who they didn't know they

15· ·didn't want to get a medical card because they're

16· ·  not in the position to know.

17· · · · So it comes down to what we know at this

18· ·particular time and how we vote in a particular

19· ·place. And to direct -- to address Ardea how I

20· ·addressed you earlier, we're not going to vote

21· ·every time someone wants to set up a dog on medical

22· ·or -- medical or recreational facility, we're going

23· ·to one time and then they just come and get a

24· ·business license. It's simple to do it here.

25· · · · They vote tonight we're going to do

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 41

·5·

·1· ·recreational, we're not going to come in here

·2· ·tomorrow when you want to set one up. It's one

·3· ·time, okay? That's why it's all in one lump sum

·4· ·thing here.

· ·  How they decide to vote they decided

·6· ·to vote. So to make it simple is money isn't the

·7· ·deciding factor. If we were worried about PTSD, we

·8· ·wouldn't have done medical, but we did because we

·9· ·were worried about your second point of PTSD.

10· · · · We can't solve everybody's problems here. All

11· ·we can do is do a little bit for what we have for

12· ·our community. And I'm going to rely on what they

13· ·do here tonight. However, they vote, I'm good with.

14· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

15· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So -- and I'm certainly not

16· ·going to rely on what Congress does, ever. And I've

17· ·been doing this awhile.

18· · · · MR. GILBERT:· That's awesome.

19· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So you can read me about Ms.

20· ·Warren.

21· · · · MR. GILBERT:· I could just mention though, I'm

22· ·sorry if I brought --

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· One more thing and we've got to

24· ·move to the next person. Okay. Mr. Gilbert?

25· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 42
  · MR. ERICKSON:· Mr. Mayor before Mr.

·3·

·4·

·1·

·2· ·Gilbert finish.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Go ahead.

  · MR. ERICKSON:· In the interest of the

·5· ·record, the city of Fallon is not licensed or

·6· ·no community license regulates or supervises

·7· ·marijuana operations under the state statute. That

·8· ·function lies with, the state government, the

·9· ·department of taxation and the department of

10· ·health.

11· · · · So what we're doing here tonight as Mr.

12· ·[inaudible] pointed out was voting on zoning

13· ·ordinance as to whether or not to permit

14· ·recreational marijuana and other forms of marijuana

15· ·business in certain zones in the city of Fallon.

16· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

17· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· And that's what the issue is.

18· ·So I don't want any confusion. And I think we need

19· ·to have a clear record on that.

20· · · · MR. GILBERT:· And I wasn't confusing. What I

21· ·was simply saying is that by regulating and taxing,

22· ·it's here anyway, like the Senator said. It's here

23· ·anyway. It's all throughout this County and

24· ·throughout the city, it's in the neighboring cities

25· ·delivering it here.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 43
 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· No question and I'll -- let me·1·

·2· ·interrupt you, it's not going away. I do not

·3· ·believe it's going away. We have all the kinds

·4· ·of police and the County as the Sheriff's and it's

·5· ·not going away in our opinion, or at least in my

·6· ·opinion. And what Mr. Erickson

·7· ·saying is, and last time they had as one of

·8· ·their expert witnesses was a regulator. We're not

·9· ·walking in the doors.

10· · · · We're driving by the parking lot. They have

11· ·regulators at the state who regulate these -- this

12· ·business. We don't go in the doors and see how

13· ·they're doing and are you doing this right and that

14· ·right. They have a problem in the parking lot,

15· ·we're there in a heartbeat. This is Fallon. It's a

16· ·six-minute town. You're not used to it. Boom, we're

17· ·  there. Okay? So when you get six

18· ·minutes away, breathe easier.

19· · · · MR. GILBERT:· Yes, sir.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· But right now we're on you.

21· ·Okay? So -- and Bob makes a good point about that.

22· ·Hi there.

23· · · · MS. MONTERO:· Hello everyone. My name is Julie

24· ·Montero; I'm a registered nurse at the state of

25· ·Nevada since 2006.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 44
 · · · And I have had the pleasure to meet your

·6·

·7·

·1·

·2· ·community this week. I've been up here earlier last

·3· ·week to be able to educate your community about

·4· ·cannabis and medicine and I even spoke at your, 

·5· ·food, what was the name of that, Steve? Food?

 ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Food hub.

 MS. MONTERO:· The food hub. And that is an

·8· ·excellent program that you guys have in this

·9· ·community. I have actually --

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Did you give us your name and

11· ·address?

12· · · · MS. MONTERO:· Oh yes. My apologies. Julie

13· ·Montero, 5648, [inaudible] Street, North Las Vegas,

14· ·Nevada, 89031. And it's an EI [inaudible]. I

15· ·discovered cannabis while working in some of the

16· ·ERs down in Southern Nevada in 2010.

17· · · · And I as a medical provider was really

18· ·concerned in the fact that I'm highly experienced,

19· ·I've worked as a pediatric ER trauma nurse for many

20· ·years, along with the County hospital. I've given

21· ·my time and efforts to medicine and yes. I was a

22· ·  Nancy Reagan just so no.

23·  · I was raised very conservative, in a very

24· ·Christian home and I knew that cannabis was a

25· ·schedule one drug, so you're not supposed to touch

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 45

·3·

·7·

·1· ·it. But my patients were coming in and they were

·2· ·using it.
    
    So as a professional, as a nurse, it is my

·4· ·duty that if there's a lack or a bridge or a need

·5· ·that member or that patient means that

·6· ·we build that bridge.
  
    And one thing I noticed, I said, well, this is

·8· ·great news. We have cannabis for our cancer

·9· ·patients, our PTSD and all these other conditions.

10· ·Where do we send our patients, our consumers?

11·  · Well [inaudible], it's called the black

12· ·market and it's behind the stratosphere and I'm

13· ·like, we don't have dispensaries. We had a program

14· ·for nine years with no safe access. So I, as a

15· ·registered nurse for my duty was to bring safe

16· ·access and safe product to the state.

17· · · · And I have made it a commitment of mine. And I

18· ·  had wonderfully, met Senator Tick Segablom who

19· ·was sponsoring some bills back in 2013.

20· · · · And from then until where we are today, we now

21· ·have dispensaries, which bring us safe access, and

22· ·we have safe product lines.

23· · · · Because there's a lot of things that can

24· ·happen along the way when they're growing with

25· ·pesticides and it's very, very vital for any

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 46
·1· ·consumer to make sure that there aren't any harmful

·2· ·effects because if you're auto immune deficient or

·3· ·have issues, those can cause serious problems.

·4· · · · So the fact that we have medical dispensary's

·5· ·in your community of Fallon is phenomenal. But one

·6· ·thing I noticed, I had to drive from Las Vegas up

·7· ·to Reno and I drove 60 miles here and I noticed

·8· ·where Fallon was.

·9· · · · Now, what's the benefit of having a

10· ·recreational dispensary here? We already know a lot

11· ·of patients can't get it for whatever reason. I can

12· ·give you a whole list of reasons and a lot of other

13· ·people here can too.

14· · · · But you guys, don't you have snow up here?

15· ·Have you -- do you know what it's like to drive? I

16· ·lived in Wyoming for five wonderful years and snow

17· ·is not my friend.

18· · · · If you have patients or consumers that can't

19· ·get it recreationally and have to drive 30 to 60

20· ·miles, for me as a nurse, you're in pain, that's

21· ·the worst thing you can do is put one of your

22· ·consumers in a vehicle in pain and have to drive

23· ·that distance.

24· · · · So safety for me as a nurse is a vitally

25· ·important aspect of it. I know you guys have a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 47

·5·

·1· ·really, really hard decision. You three. You're

·2· ·going to do the best thing for your community, but

·3· ·I, as a medical provider want to say not everyone

·4· ·can access it medically.

  · And please consider this in giving

·6· ·your constituents. I have seen a couple of them,

·7· ·they were here today. They told me a story. There

·8· ·was an older gentleman, he is 80 years old, on a

·9· ·million, I don't want to say a million but it was

10· ·on a large amount of opiates.

11· · · · And his daughter comes to me just last night

12· ·and says, how do we get my father off these

13· ·opiates? It's really killing him. And you guys have

14· ·the opportunity to provide medicine to people.

15·  ·   He actually bears arms. He loves to

16· ·apply his Second Amendment right. And as a patient

17· ·he knows he can't have a card. So allowing it

18· ·recreationally will give that individual the

19· ·opportunity to actually heal. I just want to thank

20· ·you for your time.

21· · · · If you guys have any questions or concerns --

22· ·oh, I am about education. I started Cannabis

23· ·Nurses Magazine about two and a half years ago

24· ·because everyone kept telling me there wasn't

25· ·enough research or education.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 48
 · · · So I'm going to leave this here with you. I

·5·

·6·

·1·

·2· ·own the copyright to the so you guys can copy and

·3· ·share them amongst you, especially you three. So if

·4· ·I don't know how to bring [inaudible].

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah.

  · MS. MONTERO:· Happy reading. One of them is

·7· ·actually on opiate dependency, which is actually as

·8· ·a nurse I have helped, I could say probably over 80

·9· ·patients just in Las Vegas alone come off of their

10· ·opiates and their dependency and they're using

11· ·  cannabis. And they don't have their medical card.

12· · · · They have their recreational ability. My

13· ·mother, she suffers from Alzheimer's. My sister

14· ·cares for her. And my mom can't just go down and

15· ·  get her card to go to, she's too old. Love

16· ·her to death.

17· · · · But my sister has the ability to

18· ·recreationally go pick up that medicine for her and

19· ·give us those precious moments with her. I thank

20· ·you for your time, mayor and council [inaudible].

21·

22·

23·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

  · MS. MONTERO:· Thank you very much.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· It should be noted, 

24· ·   just one moment, please. You can go ahead.

25· · · · It should be noted, it made me think about

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 49

·5·

·1· ·when Julie gave us those things,

·2· ·that everything that's been submitted to us since

·3· ·the last meeting, will be incorporated in the

·4· ·record.

· So, including a couple of things provided

·6· ·tonight and this that you provided. So, all

·7· ·these things have been put in a file that have been

·8· ·submitted, in writing will be attached to the

·9· ·minutes for this meeting tonight.

10· · · · Thank you. Including your statement, Dave,

11·   ·that you gave us. Absolutely you can. Call you

12· ·up next. Hi.

13· · · · MS. MANUS:· Thank you, mayor. Thank you,

14· ·council, staff. My name is Heather Manus, I'm a

15· ·registered nurse. My address is 2152 Crown Hill

16· ·Road, San Diego, California. I'm a

17· ·registered nurse.

18·  · I'm known as Nurse Heather and, I

19·   ·come from New Mexico where I worked with, 

20· ·  native American and Hispanic patients 

21·   ·patients primarily. I'm a home health psych

22· ·nurse. That's my background. And I cared for

23· ·patients in their home, including cannabis

24· ·patients.

25· · · · I actually came to know about cannabis as

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 50

·5·

·1· ·medicine because my patients had cannabis on their

·2· ·medication record. I started to learn more

·3· ·about that. I saw a lot of the benefits, which you

·4· ·all have heard of. I won't go into those.

    But what that did is it enabled me, because I

·6· ·have questions and I went to the state, eventually

·7· ·I was asked to be a medical director for one of

·8· ·these dispensaries. And to date I'm the longest

·9· ·running medical director in medical cannabis

10·   ·dispensary history, from 2009 till 2016.

11· · · · Part of my job was to make sure that I had the

12·   ·information and I was, sharing that knowledge

13· ·with our staff because we wanted our staff to be,

14· ·  knowledgeable in all of these things.

15· · · · I had the great opportunity of going to

16· ·medical cannabis conferences. And many of these

17· ·conferences are incredible because they have the

18· ·researchers that come from all over the world to

19· ·train us as healthcare professionals.

20·  · A lot of research doesn't necessarily

21· ·happen in the US but around the world it is

22·   ·happening and there's a lot out there. I speak,

23· ·teach and present nationally and internationally.

24· · · · None of the speaking and teaching that I do

25· ·makes me as nervous as standing in front of

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 51

·3·

·4·

·6·

·8·

·1· ·council. So please forgive me if I shake a little

·2· ·bit.
 ·    MR. TEDFORD:· Just relax. This is easy.
                

·         MS. MANUS:· It's so much better than one-on-

·5· ·one.
         MR. TEDFORD:· We're not going to [inaudible]

·7· ·or anything.

  · MS. MANUS:· I learned through these

·9· ·conferences about the endocannabinoid system and

10· ·that science behind the plant. And so I teach about

11· ·the system as well as cannabinoid therapeutics.

12· · · · One of the things that science is showing is

13·   ·that because of this system, similar to what, 

14· ·the attorney Ken had said was that although

15· ·patients use it for different reasons, it is

16· ·impacting the system the same way.

17· · · · So although patients use it for different

18· ·reasons, at the very core, the system itself is to

19· ·create balance or homeostasis between all of the

20· ·other systems in our body. And that's why it works

21· ·so well for so many other diseases.

22·  · When we talk about recreational and

23· ·medical, it gets really touchy because we have

24· ·colleagues in, Denver, Colorado, who -- she's a

25· ·hospice nurse.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 52
  · And what she said was that the rec,when

·6·

·1·

·2· ·they went recreational in Colorado, it was life-

·3· ·changing for her as a nurse because her patients

·4· ·didn't have time to get their their

·5· ·medical cards.

  · Their family members could just go to the

·7· ·dispensary and access that medicine for the last

·8· ·hours or days, where they weren't maybe in such

·9· ·a heavy state with some of the pharmaceuticals,

10· ·they were actually able to be present with their

11· ·families.

12·  · That's just one example of how there

13· ·really is no difference between that medical and

14· ·  that recreational access. I do want to 

15· ·hammer in that the goal of state cannabis programs

16· ·are to provide safe access to quality products.

17·  · That's what's happening right now for

18· ·medical patients, that they are able to safely

19· ·access these quality products. I know Steve McNeil,

20· ·he's a friend of mine and he's a wonderful cannabis

21· ·business owner right here in Fallon.

22· · · · He's doing great work and providing service to

23· ·the residents here. I guess I will end there

24· ·because there are a lot of people who want to

25· ·speak. But I would just ask you that the council to

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 53

·2·

·9·

·1· ·please vote no on this prohibition of safe access.

  As you heard, there are people that

·3· ·simply can't access a card for one reason or

·4· ·another. And having that ability to have the

·5· ·medicine is very, very important and many times

·6· ·vital. So thank you so much for your time. I really

·7· ·appreciate it. And I am available for questions if

·8· ·you have any.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.· I have one 

10· ·person in the back. I'm sorry. Way in the back.

11· ·Thank you very much. I appreciate it. Okay. Dave.

12· · · · MR. DAVE:· Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I need you Dave to speak into

14· ·that microphone.

15· · · · MR. DAVE:· Thank you members, Richardson,

16· ·Erickson, Mr. Mayor I appreciate the chance to read

17· ·my statement to you. I've provided it to you, but I

18· ·would like to read it into the record.

19· · · · And I'm here specifically -- I'd like to

20· ·address the three concerns you raised at your last

21· ·meeting where this issue was discussed. First,

22· ·potential impact on users.

23· · · · We'd like to know what impact there would be

24· ·on adult voluntary users that purchase their

25· ·cannabis in Fallon versus driving 20 miles to

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 54

·3·

·7·

·1· ·purchase it in Fernley or farther [inaudible] and

·2· ·Reno Sparks area.

 And what impact have you determined users have

·4· ·occurred in those communities? Second point is

·5· ·a shortage of votes, I'm sorry, a shortage of

·6· ·County votes in support of recreational marijuana.

 County vote should not be your primary concern

·8· ·in this matter since you represent the city not the

·9· ·County. 46 percent of city voters expressed their

10· ·desire to have both recreational and medicinal use

11· ·of cannabis.

12· · · · It seems that you have marginalized the wishes

13· ·of half the constituents by claiming there was a

14· ·lack of support in the County versus wishes of city

15· ·voters. And third, the conflict between local and

16· ·federal laws.

17· · · · Yeah, there are some conflicts, but I believe

18· ·your concerns regarding federal laws regarding

19· ·cannabis are misplaced. The federal government has

20· ·shown no proclivity to enforce existing federal

21· ·laws on state controlled sales and use of cannabis.

22· · · · In fact, the federal government, which has

23· ·complete jurisdiction over Native American

24· ·reservations, they actually have a medical and

25· ·recreational dispensary called the Pesha' Numma, I

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 55
·1· ·hope I pronounced that right, Cannabis Dispensary

·2· ·in Yerington.

·3· · · · It's on reservation territory. The state of

·4· ·Nevada has legalized the recreational use of

·5· ·cannabis. I personally do not believe the council

·6· ·should brush aside the state law and then use

·7· ·federal law as the reason to deny Nevadans the

·8· ·state approved right to purchase recreational

·9· ·cannabis.

10· · · · I ask you to represent all of Fallon citizens,

11· ·not just half, give the people an opportunity to

12· ·spend their money locally instead of going to the

13· ·Sparks, Yerington or Fernley. And I have one

14· ·question to leave you with.

15·  · And that is if the 

16· ·chamber of commerce's concept [inaudible] local

17· ·Fallon, does it just apply to 56 percent of the

18· ·population or do they want everybody's money? And I

19· ·have some pretty [inaudible] here, their

20· ·advertisement for a pharmacy in Sparks [inaudible].

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you very much, Dave, for

22· ·your comments. As always we appreciate them.

23·

24·

  · MR. DAVE:· Thank you.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you. The vote from the

25·   ·last meeting was in the city not the County,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 56

·3·

·1· ·just to clarify. Part of your comments. Okay.

·2· ·Yes. Name and address for the record and --

  · MS. CHARLBURY:· My name is Tonya Charlbury,

·4· ·824 Augusta Lane. And I came here to say something

·5· ·completely different, but this -- this has a

·6· ·personal chord that it strikes with me. I haven't

·7· ·used cannabis but I have a friend who does, and the

·8· ·friend lived in Memphis and was miserable and

·9· ·wanted to come out here to Fallon.

10· · · · But the friend, this was two years ago when

11· ·the legality was very nebulous, and the friend is a

12· ·Navy veteran with PTSD. And I thought one of the

13· ·reasons why he is miserable is because he lived in

14· ·Memphis, not in Fallon and it's very positive

15· ·community and I thought he might be happier here.

16· · · · And so I suggested he relocate to Fallon and

17·   ·he said, I need pot to keep me going. And

18· ·I didn't really understand that concept, but he was

19· ·adamant about it and it wasn't legal at the time

20· ·and it was problematic.

21· And I explained to him how will you

22· ·get it. I don't like the smell. I don't want it to

23· ·my house, but good luck with that basically. But it

24· ·was disconcerting to see when he couldn't get the

25· ·supply of the stuff how he personally unraveled.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 57
·1· · · · And it got to the point where I told him,

·2· ·okay. I'll put you in my car and I'll drive you

·3· ·through Reno, hopefully you can find it somewhere.

·4· ·And the personal trauma that the guy was going

·5· ·through to actually get the stuff and just be okay

·6· ·was really stark.

·7· · · · And I ended up actually driving him all the

·8· ·way down to Las Vegas and driving him from bus stop

·9· ·to bus stop, hopefully he could make eye contact

10· ·with somebody who could sell him the stuff

11· ·illegally.

12· · · · But my point is that even though I don't

13· ·relate to it, I observed somebody really having a

14· ·hard time with PTSD as a veteran, not having

15· ·convenient access to this stuff.

16· · · · And perhaps the only difference that this

17· ·decision to make or not, to allow or not allow a

18· ·local business here, it just makes the access more

19· ·convenient.

20· · · · And how [inaudible] effect that can sometimes

21· ·have on somebody having a really bad day surprised

22· ·me. But from personal observations it was dark.

23· ·Thank you.

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you, Tonya.

25· · · · MR. SHUCK:· Yes, sir. Hey, how are you all

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 58

·2·

·3·

·8·

·1· ·doing this evening?

· MR. TEDFORD:· Good.

· MR. SHUCK:· Good. My name is Nick Shuck.

·4· ·My address is 4865 Fiesta Lake street, Las Vegas,

·5· ·Nevada, [inaudible] 130. I am a city boy coming up

·6· ·here to the country to talk about why recreational

·7· ·cannabis should be legal.

  · So I represent a bunch of clients down in

·9· ·Clark County. One of my largest is called the

10· ·Apothecary Shop. They're one of the most busiest

11·   ·dispensaries in Las Vegas. Since last July

12· ·we've introduced over 500,000 people to

13· ·recreational cannabis.

14· · · · And I can field any questions you may have

15· ·about revenue. I can tell you that the areas

16· ·around these establishments have seen lower crime

17· ·rates. I can tell you why opium and methamphetamine

18· ·uses have been on the decline.

19·  · But more importantly, to [inaudible]

20· ·  first point, I want to talk about community. We

21· ·know that drugs are going to find their way,

22· ·  to pretty much any house in America.

23·  ·   That's not only just cannabis, that is

24· ·opium and that is meth. I was just about to

25· ·tweet outside, because that's what people my age

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 59

·3·

·6·

·9·

·1· ·do, and I was the one that talk about how nice this

·2· ·town was.

But then,this is unfortunate for me

·4· ·to say this, I saw two people my age,smoke

·5· ·meth in their car.

And we've heard the headlines of the small

·7· ·town falling victim to the opium and

·8· ·methamphetamine crisis.

And what I would like to see is small town

10· ·  America, become more progressive in the sense

11· ·  where we can talk to doctors about how this

12· ·immediately and adequately addresses those types of

13· ·addictions.

14· · · · And we can create sustainable communities

15· ·  that will last generations upon generations. We

16· ·have seen small town America, places like Fallon

17·   ·lose, brain drain or, their smartest people to

18·   ·the cities. We've seen, these communities get

19· ·lost by factories moving overseas and that type of

20· ·stuff.

21· · · · What's great about cannabis is that it's 100

22· ·percent American made, 100 percent American made

23· ·jobs.

24· · · · There's great evidence all across the board

25· ·for pretty much anything. Another fact that you may

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 60

·4·

·8·

·1· ·want to consider is that if you have cultivation

·2· ·grows, that are outdoor, that's one of the best

·3· ·ways to combat CO2.

  And I think global warming is a real thing

·5· ·that we have to address 30, 50 years down the line.

·6· ·So yeah. that's pretty much it. I can happily

·7· ·field any questions.

  Another point I would like to add real quick

·9· ·before I finish is one of the biggest [inaudible]

10· ·that I've seen that people don't get medical cards,

11· ·  is because they want to maintain their gun

12· ·rights and there is ambiguity in federal law

13· ·between having a medical card and also owning a

14· ·gun.

15· · · · And that has been the number one reason by far

16· ·  why people are hesitant towards doing so, and I

17·   ·think this is a gun friendly community.

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you for that. Appreciate

19· ·that.

20· · · · MR. SHUCK:· Any questions? Thank you.

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you. Okay. Anybody else

22· ·wish to testify?

23· · · · HERB:· Yeah. A little prudence all, I'm not

24· ·from Las Vegas or Reno like some of these people. I

25· ·live right here in Fallon.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 61
·1·

·2·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Hi, Herb.

 · HERB:· Hi. Here a while back we had a

·7·

·3· ·city and a county wide election and the results of

·4· ·that election I think I was like 52 to 48

·5· ·percent, the people voted it down. They did not

·6· ·want marijuana or these kind of people in our town.

  · So, I don't know if [inaudible] it or not, 
if

·8· ·he did he had a pretty good reason but I know the

·9· ·people on Fallon don't want it. And if public
10·   ·officials, think they should abide by the --

11· ·the vote of the people, the majority of the people

12· ·are not the special interests.

13·

14·

  · That's all I got.

 · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay, thanks, sir.

15· ·Appreciate that. Do we have anybody else against or

16· ·are we --

17·

18·

  · MALE 1:· [inaudible] --

 · MR. TEDFORD:·Yeah,

19· ·we just got over there a little bit. Anybody

20· ·  against, this before we switch to the

21· ·for the amendment or for the bill?

22· · · · [talking in the background, inaudible]

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· For the bill.

24· · · · [talking in the background, inaudible]

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah. Okay.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 62
 · · · [talking in the background, inaudible]

 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· You come. You need to come. This

·4·

·5·

·6·

·8·

·9·

·1·

·2·

·3· ·-- thank you.

 MR. GIBSON:· Thank you.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Yes, sir.

 MR. GIBSON:· My name's Russell Gibson, I moved

·7· ·here in July of last year. 

 FEMALE:· We can't hear [inaudible] --

 MR. TEDFORD:· You need to --

10· MR. GIBSON: I am at 1334 Bianchi Lane,

11· ·Fallon, Nevada. I'm a Vietnam Vet. I've never used

12· ·marijuana, but I sure saw a lot of it in Vietnam.

13· ·  the marijuana we had was nowhere near, I

14· ·understand, the strength of what they have now.

15·  · I just don't think it's a good thing to

16·   ·have in your town. All the people, other than

17· ·the gentleman before me, were all from the out of

18· ·the area. That's a business. They don't live here,

19· ·they don't care. It's a business.

20· · · · To a couple of the nurses, I would say, I have

21· ·to exclude them from that statement slightly, but

22· ·people that live here, I don't think it's a good

23· ·thing for your kids, I don't think it's a good

24·   ·thing to have around, for your police

25· ·department.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 63
·1· · · · You've got major highways coming north, south,

·2· ·east and west. If you've got a place here where

·3· ·they can buy it, are we going to have more wrecks

·4· ·on the road? They're already plowing through town

·5· ·and maybe go straight down Main Street, whoo, not

·6· ·good.

·7· · · · That's all I have to say. I'd just like you to

·8· ·think what's good for the town.

·9· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you. Let me go back

10· ·to this -- the -- the Bill 780, an ordinance

11· ·amending Fallon Muni Code to prohibit marijuana.

12· ·Does anybody else want to speak for the bill to --

13· ·before we get to those people who want to prohibit

14· ·it. Are anybody against this bill? Yeah. Nick,

15· ·would you like to speak again?

16· · · · NICK:· Yes -- yes, please. One last

17· ·comment that I forgot to add --

18·

19·

20·

21·

22·

23·

24·

25·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· For -- this is not a 
rebuttal.

· NICK:· -- that's not a rebuttal of --

· MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

· MR. TEDFORD:· -- the previous --

· MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

· NICK:· -- comment.

· MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

· NICK:· It is something completely, not

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 64

·2·

·1· ·related.

· There's been a debate about whether
or

·3· ·not Churchill County and Fallon can regulate

·4· ·these licenses themselves.
·5·

· MR. TEDFORD:· And I want to clear up what

·6· ·regulate means to us.
·7·
· NICK:· Okay.
·8·

· MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

   NICK:· So, I'm just going to draw an
10· ·  analogy --

11·

12·

13·

14·

15·

16·

17·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· [inaudible] --

 · NICK:· -- real quick --

 · MR. TEDFORD:· -- I'm talking still.

 · NICK:· Okay. Sorry, about that.

 · [laughter in background]

 · NICK:· What does regulate mean to you?

 · MR. TEDFORD:· Regulate means that

18· ·we go through the back, we go through the door --

19· · · · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- and we check out how that

21· ·business is being run.

22· · · · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We, the City, don't regulate

24· ·business here.

25· · · · NICK:· Mm.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 65
 ·  · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay? We don't regulate any

·6·

·7·

·1·

·2· ·business. We don't go and see how a restaurant's

·3· ·being run. Wwe don't do that here. We

·4· ·don't go regulate how a beauty shop's being run.

·5· ·The State does those sort of things here --

NICK:· Mm-hmm.

MR. TEDFORD:· -- okay? And the -- the business

·8· ·here sends money to the State for that privilege

·9· ·and they had someone here last time who spoke on

10· ·their behalf about how their businesses run well.

11·  · The medical marijuana business

12· ·is run well and we believe that. Okay? So, PD

13· ·doesn't go behind here, behind the business and see

14· ·how it's run. We had a problem a few years ago with

15· ·some minute markets who were selling drugs --

16· · · · NICK:· Mm.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- okay? Ma- -- and -- and in a

18· ·manner that wasn't acceptable to this Council and

19·   ·to this Mayor. The DEA came in here and the FBI

20· ·and they found some things wrong, and they went

21· ·behind the door --

22· · · · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- with the Police Department at

24·   ·that time. We are not in the position of

25· ·going and regulating the business because the State

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 66

·3·

·1· ·regulates this particular business and how they

·2· ·operate.

 Now, you know this [inaudible] carry in all

·4· ·this kind of stuff in Vegas, you know that --

·5· ·that's how that's done. So they're going to

·6· ·drive by the parking lot and see if there's cars

·7· ·out there and if something happens out in the

·8· ·parking lot, we're going to be on it, just like I

·9· ·told Mr. Gilbert.

10· · · · So, let's be careful how we use the word

11· ·regulate. It's very important to us --

12· · · · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- because I don't want any of

14· ·the citizens here to think Fallon PD, and I

15· ·certainly don't want these folks who are running

16· ·this medical marijuana business to think Fallon

17·   ·PD's going to go through that door which they

18· ·haven't done --

19· · · · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- in the time that they've been

21· ·in existence. That isn't fair to them. We're not

22· ·going to start doing that.

23· · · · NICK:· Okay.

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Businesses run very well and

25· ·  We're not second guessing that

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 67

·3·

·4·

·5·

·1· ·tonight. So, let's be careful about the word

·2· ·regulation so --

NICK:· Yeah --

MR. TEDFORD:· -- find another word.

NICK:· Well, I think you just made my

·6· ·whole point null, which is seeing

·7· ·counties and local ordinances write regulations

·8· ·that supersede what the State has and if you had

·9· ·any, inferences or any reservations before, you

10· ·could enact one of those.

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We're not going to.

12· · · · NICK:· All right, thank you.

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· The City does not like to write

14· ·very many ordinances at all. You find -- you're

15· ·finding something we don't like to do here.

16· · · · NICK:· All right.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We don't like to regulate

18· ·citizens or write ordinances for them.

19· · · · MS. FROST:· Before -- before he leaves, I have

20· ·a question as well and just a clarification --

21·

22·

  · NICK:· Mm-hmm.

 · MS. FROST:· -- if we want the record clean.

23· ·--

24·

25·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· ·Clean and clear.

 · MS. FROST:· Clean and clear. Okay. When

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 68

·6·

·7·

·1· ·somebody, fills out the questionnaire

·2· ·through a federal gun, dealer to purchase a

·3· ·firearm, I believe it -- the question states that

·4· ·if you use medical or recreational marijuana it

·5· ·doesn't matter --

NICK:· Mm-hmm.

MS. FROST:· -- it's asking that question. It's

·8· ·not asking if it's medical or recreational. It's

·9· ·just the pure use of it. So, people that would

10· ·purchase it recreationally, would they be denied a

11· ·  background check?

12·  · NICK:· From the best of my understanding

13·   ·and I have to research this again, how the gun

14· ·stores and those other retailers go about verifying

15· ·this is they cross check the medical database

16·   ·versus the, all the medical marijuana databases

17·   ·like Nevada, California, Oregon, etcetera

18· ·versus, I guess who's trying to purchase the gun to

19· ·  make sure there isn't a match.

20·  · Under recreational cannabis laws here, you

21· ·don't actually need to criminally identify that

22· ·person, you just need to identify them at the point

23· ·of entry and at the point of sale and then you

24· ·don't need to maintain records of that person.

25· · · · So the purchase is more or less anonymous as

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 69

·4·

·5·

·6·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·long as we're verifying that person is over 21 on

·2· ·premise. And we're not checking the medical

·3· ·records. Does that make sense?

  MS. FROST:· Yes.

  NICK:· Okay.

  MS. FROST:· So the person would be lying on

·7· ·their form?

  · NICK:· They just want to show up [ph].

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Mm-hmm. Well, that's word

10· ·Smithing it.

11·

12·

  · [laughter in background]

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Do you have anyone

13· ·  else that you know of is testifying? Okay.

14· ·  Let's take a break here. 

15· ·let's take a five-minute break. I was accused of

16· ·not taking one and man, holy heck rained on me.

17·

18·

19·

20·

21·

22·

23·

24·

  · [recess taken]

  · 

 

 

 

 

  MR. TEDFORD:· It's going to be organized.

 Okay. You ready? I think we have just the end

25· ·  of, the people that are against this ordinance

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 70

·2·

·8·

·1· ·and then we'll start the people for it.

FEMALE 1:· (inaudible] again. Thank you

·3· ·again, for taking the time to listen. I just

·4· ·wanted to kind of summarize, I think that

·5· ·Councilman Erickson you said it -- said it

·6· ·perfect in that, we're not here tonight to debate,

·7· ·the pros and cons of cannabis.

We're here to decide whether or not the City

·9· ·of Fallon is going to allow adults in the community

10· ·easy access to the cannabis, whether it's for

11· ·recreational use or whether it's for medical use.

12·  ·   I just ask the council tonight

13· ·to realize we're going to hear a lot of, I know,

14· ·coming up is opposition as to the -- the detriments

15· ·of how bad cannabis is, but the reality is the

16· ·  community was pretty split on whether or not, 

17· ·recreational use for the State, the County and the

18· ·  City, on that vote.

19· · · · So, we're not -- we're not here today to ask

20· ·the County -- or to ask the City to force those

21· ·community members to use cannabis who don't want

22· ·to. We're asking the council to allow access to

23· ·those adults in the community who take that -- 21

24· ·and older who -- who want that ability to have that

25· ·access.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 71
 · · · And, so, you know, we don't want to deprive,

·5·

·9·

·1·

·2· ·and we ask the council not to deprive those adults,

·3· ·who voted for recreational use that option and

·4· ·that choice, to be able to purchase.

  · And -- and again, we're not -- we're not

·6· ·forcing, we're not asking the council to obviously

·7· ·force anybody, any adult to -- to, have to use

·8· ·cannabis.

  We're just asking for easy access for those

10· ·  who do and to consider again, the benefits for

11· ·the law enforcement to be able to enforce illegal

12· ·home grows. They will not have that same

13· ·enforceability if they do not -- if the City does

14· ·  not have a recreational, dispensary.

15· · · · So thank you again for your time. We really

16· ·appreciate it. I know it's been a long journey.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you. Okay, now we

18· ·will allow comments in favor of the adoption of the

19· ·ordinance as proposed. We have two on record

20·   ·already from Herb and from Russell.

21·  So, we're good to go and we'll go with, 

22· ·anyone else, so. Okay. Name and record for the --

23·

24·

25·

  · MR. WAITE:· My name is Nathan Waite [ph].

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Nathan.

  · MR. WAITE:· I live at 275 West Richards

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 72

·5·

·1· ·Street here in Fallon. About 22 years ago I

·2· ·moved here and, I've had the opportunity to,

·3· ·own actually three different homes in the city

·4· ·limits.

  · So this is of interest to me, and the

·6· ·decisions of the council affect me. I don't

·7· ·represent anybody except for myself. My kids are

·8· ·grown, and they're gone now, so, I just

·9· ·represent myself.

10·  · First of all, I want to state that I

11· ·  believe, individual choice is a right of all

12· ·people. And I'm not here to argue for or against a

13· ·decision that any adult would make because that's

14·   ·something that goes beyond, the authority of

15· ·this council. We're all born with the opportunity

16· ·  to choose and, we choose and we have to

17· ·face the consequences of our choices.

18· · · · I know there are many studies for or against

19· ·or in -- in favor or in opposition but I would just

20· ·  like to talk to you about, my personal

21· ·experiences here in Fallon because I feel like

22· ·those are the most relevant.

23· · · · And to be honest with you, those mean the most

24· ·  to me. Those mean more to me, than any study or

25· ·any quotation from an expert or anything like that,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 73

·3·

·7·

·1· ·my own personal experiences relating to this

·2· ·subject.
    I mentioned that I had, purchased three

·4· ·residences within the city limits in the last 20

·5· ·years. And, obviously I am in favor of Bill,

·6· ·780.

 And I support it because when I lived in two

·8· ·of those three residences, there were known

·9· ·recreational marijuana users who lived within a

10· ·block of me and I personally witnessed the chaos

11·   ·that irresponsible behavior, as I judge

12· ·  it, that endangered my family and it

13· ·it was a black eye in our neighborhood.

14· · · · My relatives would say, are you going to move

15· ·out of the hood of Fallon and move to a different

16· ·  neighborhood and I said, you know, we are

17· ·where we're at. And so I can personally say the

18· ·recreational use of marijuana was a negative to two

19· ·of those three neighborhoods.

20·  ·   The other experience that I draw in 

21·   ·when I decided to come speak to you today, had

22· ·to do with the difference between adults and kids.

23· ·Those of you who know me know that I work with

24· ·  kids. And, I agree, that all adults are given

25· ·the right to choose what they want to do.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 74
  · And to be honest with you, I agree that, 

·6·

·1·

·2· ·you know, marijuana's probably not going away or,

·3· ·you know, if somebody chooses to use that in

·4· ·in a medical way, to be honest with you, 

·5·   that's their choice.

 But, I would like to say in the last year,

·7· ·I have seen more instances of youth who are in

·8· ·possession of marijuana, who are selling marijuana,

·9· ·who are trading marijuana, and I would add

10· ·marijuana products, and I believe it's a result of

11· ·the proliferation of marijuana and marijuana

12· ·related products in our community.

13·  · I really like that you have the maps of

14· ·our city up here behind you and as I was looking at

15· ·  those and listening to your comments, Mayor

16· ·Tedford, I thought, that little sanctuary is really

17· ·where everything happens when it comes to kids,

18· ·organized things for our kids in this community. We

19· ·got the schools, we got the parks, we got the

20· ·swimming pools, it's all right there.

21· · · · And nobody is arguing that adults can't be

22· ·adults. But you have the opportunity tonight not to

23· ·make the world perfect because nobody's going to do

24· ·that, but to protect that little area where the

25· ·kids are at for most of their time.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 75
 · · · When I go to their FYFL football games, when

·8·

·1·

·2· ·they're doing all their baseball games and

·3· ·everything, we're going to know that in that little

·4· ·zone there's not going to be an unnecessary amount

·5· ·or access to a substance, which quite

·6· ·frankly is regulated for a reason. I mean, we can't

·7· ·get in and drive a car.

  One other positive I would see with, with

·9· ·this is it shows the community, and I'm not

10· ·talking about just Fallon. It shows everyone what

11· ·we believe in, what we stand for. I believe

12· ·positive attracts positive and negative attracts

13· ·negative. And like I said at the beginning, I speak

14· ·from my personal experiences and that's the reason

15· ·I express this.

16· · · · And I would encourage you to go forward and

17· ·prohibit the increased use under your watch. I

18·   ·mean, if it's used illegally, I mean

19· ·   that's an adult's choice, right.

20· · · · But we don't have to condone it and we don't

21· ·have to choose, to allow adults to do things

22· ·that right now we know will end up in the hands of

23· ·kids because the kids don't have enough experience

24· ·yet to make correct choices.

25· · · · And I guarantee you, that is where they're

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 76

·3·

·5·

·1· ·getting it. The kids are getting it from adults.

·2· ·The kids are not cultivating it themselves. Thanks.

MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you, Nathan. Tom. Name and

·4· ·address for the record.

MR. RIGGINS:· Thank you, Mayor, council

·6· ·members. My name is Tom Riggins, I live at 975

·7· ·Airport Road, that's not in the city but it is a --

·8· ·a 89406 ZIP code. I'm here because although I

·9· ·live in the county, your decisions in the city will

10· ·have an affect on the entire county.

11·  · I have been known to have an opinion or

12· ·  two occasionally.

13· · · · [laughter in background]

14· · · · MR. RIGGINS:· -- but I do like to deal in

15· ·facts and I like to base my opinions on facts. When

16· ·I started to look for facts concerning recreational

17·   ·marijuana, what I found was, partial

18· ·conflicting and usually geared towards the bias of

19· ·whoever was putting that -- those statistics

20· ·together and that was on both sides of the aisle.

21· · · · I did find in Colorado one study, I have no

22· ·idea what the organization stands for but the

23· ·statistics and data that they provide were strictly

24· ·  just that, they didn't attempt to 

25·   ·interpret the -- just provided the data.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 77
 · · · And it's from state and local agencies in

·6·

·1·

·2· ·Colorado. They've been doing this for five

·3· ·years. And they're copiously referenced and an

·4· ·annotated so that you can go through 

·5· ·and look up what they're saying and verify it.

 This is a 176-page report so I'm not going

·7· ·to go through the whole thing, I promise. What

·8· ·the people that do the report, and it's

·9· ·called the Rocky Mountain High Intensity Drug

10· ·Trafficking Area.

11·  · You can find this report at rmhidta.org.

12· ·  And as I said, they've been doing this for five

13· ·years. The most recent was Volume 5 in October

14· ·  2017. What I'm going to do is, mention some

15· ·  statistics that I think, would have some

16· ·economic or social affects that we could extend and

17· ·apply here.

18·  ·   Marijuana-related traffic deaths 
in

19· ·Colorado increased 66 percent for a four-year

20· ·average of 2013 to 2016 after legalization of

21· ·  recreational marijuana in Colorado. All traffic

22· ·deaths increased 16 percent.

23·  · Adult marijuana use, and they call

24· ·this adult past month marijuana use, which is

25· ·  basically regular use, increased 71 percent

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 78

·4·

·8·

·1· ·which stands to reason. The latest 2014, 2015

·2· ·results show Colorado's adults rank number one in

·3· ·the nation for past month's marijuana use.

  · Now, I don't have a problem with that, but 
the

·5· ·next statistic bothers me. Youth past month

·6· ·marijuana use increased 12 percent per year in a

·7· ·three-year average 2013 to 2015.

  · The latest 2014, '15 results show Colorado

·9· ·youth ranked number one in the nation for past
10· ·month marijuana use, up from number 14 in 2005 and

11· ·2006. Now, keep in mind, that statistic is for

12· ·minors, people that aren't supposed to have

13· ·marijuana legally.

14·  · Going along with that, all drug violations

15· ·for the 2015, 2016 school year, this comes from the

16· ·  Colorado Department of Education,

17· ·suspensions, 4,236 of which 63 percent were for

18· ·marijuana.

19· · · · Referrals to law enforcement 1143, of which 28

20· ·-- or excuse, of which 73 percent were marijuana

21· ·and expulsions 337, which is 58 percent were for

22· ·marijuana.

23· · · · So they didn't interpret that data, but I can

24· ·infer from that very easily that the legal

25· ·availability of marijuana to adults translates to a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 79

·4·

·8·

·1· ·higher use for youth or minors, if you will. 

·2· ·and the accessibility of recreational marijuana

·3· ·carries through to the youth as well.

  Some other statistics, the yearly number

·5· ·of marijuana related hospitalizations in Colorado

·6· ·increased 72 percent after the legalization of an -

·7· ·- recreational marijuana.

  Youth hospitalizations quadrupled in that

·9· ·period mostly for what they called mental health

10· ·issues. I don't know exactly what that involved but

11· ·the fact that the youth admissions quadrupled is

12· ·telling.

13·  ·   Another item, marijuana-related

14· ·exposures, now this is phone calls to the poison

15· ·centers, increased 139 percent in the four-year

16· ·average since Colorado legalized recreational

17· ·marijuana.

18· · · · Marijuana-only exposures; this is where

19· ·marijuana was the only cause cited for the call,

20· ·increased 210 percent in that same period.

21·  ·  Crime rates in Denver increased 6 percent

22· ·from 2014 to 2016. I really didn't have any causal

23· ·background for that but in Denver there was an

24· ·increase of 11 percent from 2013 to 2016.

25·  · This might be helpful in economic

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 80

·5·

·1· ·decisions. Colorado's annual tax revenue from the

·2· ·sale of recreational and medical marijuana was 8

·3· ·tenth of 1 percent of Colorado's total budget in

·4· ·2016.

  Another thing that you might be interested

·6· ·in, 66 percent of local jurisdictions have banned

·7· ·medical and recreational marijuana businesses. So,

·8· ·in other words,out of the 110 or so

·9· ·municipalities and legal entities in Colorado,

10· ·about 70 have said no.

11·  · And one final reminder, according to the

12· ·Secretary of Nevada, Secretary of State, Churchill

13· ·County's vote, against question two in 2016 was

14· ·59.86 percent against. So, if you support your

15· ·ordinance, you're representing the majority of the

16· ·voters in the county. Thank you.

17·  · MR. TEDFORD:· Tom, we're going to need 

18· ·all those stats and where they came from for the

19· ·record. And we're going to need them

20· ·provided to Val.

21· · · · MR. RIGGINS:· PDF copy acceptable, if I can

22· ·figure out how to get it off my phone? Or can I

23· ·email it to you or --

24· · · · [talking in background, inaudible]

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· She can --

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 81
 · · · MR. RIGGINS:· She can be reached --

 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- she'll provide -- she'll give

·4·

·5·

·6·

·1·

·2·

·3· ·you a card and she'll provide those [inaudible].

 MR. RIGGINS:· Thank you.

 MR. TEDFORD:· All right, thank you.

 MR. LORDS:· Good evening, Mayor and City

·7· ·Council. My name's Kevin Lords, I'm

·8· ·the principal for another month at the high school.

·9· ·

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Where you going then?

11· · · · MR. LORDS:· I'm going to be in the district

12· ·office --

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Oh, okay.

14· · · · MR. LORDS:· -- here at the end of -- the

15· ·beginning of next month.

16·  ·   I live at 1589 Tamara Lane in Fallon.

17· ·just real briefly, I've been the principal at the

18· ·high school for nine years and the data that I

19· ·pulled is, we have had disciplinary action taken

20· ·against our students no more than five in a school

21·   ·year for the first eight years I was at

22· ·the high school.

23·  · bThis last year, that number's tripled. And

24· ·I don't pretend to think that we're catching every

25· ·student that is in possession or using marijuana on

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 82

·3·

·7·

·1· ·our campus. I don't even know what

·2· ·number that would be.

  The ease of access is very worrisome for

·4· ·myself as a parent, as well as as an educator. 

·5· ·When adults have easy access, kids have easy

·6· ·access.

  ·We dealt with a situation this year of

·8· ·some edibles that a student brought to school and

·9· ·distributed. Those edibles were not purchased

10· ·by the student but found that they received them

11· ·from an adult and therefore that is what's

12· ·concerning to me.

13· · · · I am in favor of your Bill Number 780 and --

14·   ·and would agree that we need to protect our

15· ·children in this community, first and foremost.

16·  ·   And we know that not all adults make the

17· ·best decisions, nor do all the children make the

18· ·best decisions, but if we can protect them in any

19· ·way, I'm in favor of that. Thank you.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Kevin, if you have a number on

21· ·that from your first day -- years to your ninth,

22· ·Val's going to need a copy of that to provide to

23· ·  Ardea [ph].

24· · · · [talking in background, inaudible]

25· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Carmen Schank, my address is 2475

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 83

·3·

·6·

·1· ·Austin Highway. I am a school board trustee in my

·2· ·7th year, of working on the school board.

 On the pics that I gave you I have the,

·4· ·places where this information was gathered

·5· ·from.

 You can see that there. A large

·7· ·portion of it is from the National Institute on

·8· ·Drug Abuse and also from the DARE program that

·9· ·we've been using in the school for years to teach

10· ·the children.

11·  ·   I'm not going to read the whole thing,

12· ·but I do want to read some parts of it. The first

13· ·paragraph there says, "Marijuana establishments in

14· ·communities have shown to increase community wide

15· ·acceptance and accessibility for youth. Studies

16· ·show that with increased acceptance and

17· ·b  accessibility to marijuana, youth use

18· ·rates increased."· In other words, if adults have

19· ·it, the rates in the youth increase, which Mr.

20· ·Riggins just stated that and Mr. Lords.

21· · · · "A 2015 study shows that legalized

22· ·dispensaries can lead to greater recreational

23· ·marijuana use and abuse among adults and those

24· ·under the age of legal age of 21. Addiction rates

25· ·increase with increased accessibility to the drug,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 84

·5·

·1· ·especially with youth of who 90 percent of all

·2· ·addictions begin with."· So, if they're exposed to

·3· ·it, they become -- 90 percent of them can

·4· ·become addicted to it.

  "Youth that use before the age of 17 are 70

·6· ·percent more likely to become addicted. Forty

·7· ·percent of people between the ages of 12 and 17

·8· ·years old purchase cannabis in cannabis shops.

·9· ·Growing up with less than two-thirds mile of a

10· ·marijuana dispensary is associated with earlier age

11· ·of onset marijuana use."

12·  · Now I know this in the ordinance

13· ·bill number it says -- one of the things that's

14· ·included here is retail marijuana stores.

15·     We have a mini-mart right next to the high

16· ·school and yes, kids under 21 are not supposed to

17· ·buy it but they have problems with shoplifting of

18· ·  alcohol there and I know that if they have, 

19·   ·marijuana, available there, if kids don't

20· ·  have money it'll be shoplifted. That's been one

21· ·  of the problems that we do have to

22· ·deal with there.

23·

24·

  ·Turning over to the next page --

  ·MR. TEDFORD:· Wait, wait, wait a sec. Wait a

25·   ·sec. Wait a sec. Were you talking now?

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 85

·2·

·3·

·5·

·7·

·9·

·1· ·

MS. SCHANK:· Oh, I'm not done.

MR. TEDFORD:· No, no, I know you're not but

·4· ·what store are you talking?

MS. SCHANK:· Well, there's a

·6· ·mini-mart. I'm not going to say the name of it.

· MR. TEDFORD:· No, no, but what location are
we at?

·8· ·What school did you just say --

· MS. SCHANK:· The high school.

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Well, I know what mini-

11· ·market it is, but, they're

12· · · · MS. SCHANK:· I mean --

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- they're not selling that

14· ·cannabis. We're talking --

15· · · · MS. SCHANK:· No, it says here retail marijuana

16· ·stores and, so, is that not a store?

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Ri- -- ri- -- that's a store but

18· ·  it's not a retail marijuana store. 

19· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Okay, okay. It would have to be a

20· ·specific store for marijuana?

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah.

22· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Okay.

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· That's correct.

24· · · · MS. SCHANK:· That clarifies that.

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 86
·1· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Thank you.

·2· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Yeah. Sorry to interrupt

·3· ·you --

·4· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Well --

·5· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- go ahead.

·6· · · · MS. SCHANK:· -- "Many youth are now using" --

·7· ·this is on the second page -- "Many youth are now

·8· ·using marijuana as a way to self-medicate

·9· ·themselves for stress management. We want to make

10· ·note of the impacts on youth brain development and

11· ·the long-term effects. Marijuana impairs

12· ·development in the areas of the brain that control

13· ·reasoning, stress management, focusing, motivation

14· ·and several other areas leaving long-term impact,

15· ·with the ability of reducing IQ by 8 percent."

16·  ·  I'm going to skip down to the bottom of

17· ·  the page now where it talks about, people

18· ·who are intoxicated with marijuana "are much less

19· ·able to learn or memorize."

20· · · · We actually do have students that come to

21· ·  school taking marijuana and they're dazed. 

22· ·  We've had an expulsion from students on

23·   ·marijuana even as early at the middle school.

24· ·We're dealing with it in the schools and as this

25· ·  first paragraph stated, if adults have

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 87

·3·

·9·

·1· ·accessibility to it, the youth are going to have

·2· ·access to it also.

 "They're much less able to have proper

·4· ·motor coordination as stated, people who drive

·5· ·under the influence of that are impaired. There

·6· ·have been deaths from it."· So, when people say it

·7· ·doesn't affect other people, it does. If you lose a

·8· ·loved one because of that it affects you.

  · "Much less able to pay attention. Much less

10· ·able to get higher education. Much more likely to

11· ·have car accidents. Much higher risks that it is

12· ·fatal than when they are not intoxicated."

13·  · Our graduation rate will more than likely

14· ·  go down if this is allowed.

15·  · Turning over onto the next page. "How

16· ·addictive is marijuana? Estimated 9 percent exposed

17· ·  to marijuana will become addicted. Marijuana 

18· ·  a gateway drug."· This is taught in the

19· ·DARE program that they -- it is known that people

20· ·who take marijuana it leads to other drugs. It can

21·   ·lead to other drugs. So, it's called a

22· ·gateway drug.

23· · · · "Youth that start marijuana use before the age

24· ·of 17 have a much greater rate of becoming addicted

25· ·  to a wide range of other drugs. Marijuana, how

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 88
·1· ·does it harm the brain? Across all of the cortical

·2· ·areas of the brain, the area of the brain that

·3· ·allows you to think there is a significant

·4· ·reduction on cannabinoid receptors in marijuana

·5· ·users."

·6· · · · I'm going to skip down to where it says

·7· ·"Significant affects are seen in the hippocampus

·8· ·which is crucial in memory and learning. The

·9· ·amygdala, which is a crucial area in emotions and

10· ·is responsible for enhanced anxiety when the

11· ·cannabinoid system does not work. Wiring of

12· ·networks in the brain is profoundly decreased in

13· ·users of marijuana. The number of fibers were --

14· ·was reduced 85 to 90 percent in Dr. Vilpause's [ph]

15· ·study referenced. Areas of the brain this applies

16· ·to are as follows:· They have a campus, a main

17· ·pathway connecting the left and right parts of the

18· ·brain with the main mode in the brain is profoundly

19· ·disrupted in marijuana abusers. And the longer the

20· ·  exposures, the less fibers there are in

21· ·  those pathways." So it does have, bad effects

22· ·  on the body. There are lower cognitive levels.

23· · · · I'm going to go to the next page. Actually,

24· ·  That's notes that I have here. In the DARE

25· ·program, it's stated, "It is neither safe nor

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 89
·1· ·healthy for students and all children under the age

·2· ·of 18 to use marijuana. The science on the subject

·3· ·is clear, it has dangerous and unhealthy

·4· ·consequences on many levels. There are

·5· ·increased traffic accidents and deaths, increased

·6· ·emergency room visits with marijuana overdoses.

·7· ·Increased hospitalization. Increased

·8· ·addiction and use of other more lethal drugs and

·9· ·out of every six who try will develop an

10· ·addiction."

11·  · Just because something is legal doesn't

12· ·  mean that it's good either. Many

13· ·scientific studies have shown that marijuana use

14· ·  has many negative, consequences" and as I

15· ·stated including impaired brain development. And

16· ·also increased lung infections.

17·  · It's -- study shows it

18· ·increases crime rates, it increases fatal drug

19· ·  driving crashes, black market activity in states.

20·   ·The complete long-term verdicts on the

21· ·  study also are not finalized either.

22· · · · People haven't been taking it long enough.

23· ·It's like when people started smoking cigarettes,

24· ·they thought it was the cool thing to do, it was in

25· ·all the movies and everybody was smoking.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 90
 · · · And then years later they found out that it

·4·

·9·

·1·

·2· ·caused cancer and was not good and now you see

·3· ·signs all over where it says, please don't smoke.

 And the long-term effects, not only to

·5· ·the individual person but in societies and

·6· ·communities, is not out completely. We're

·7· ·seeing negative effects in Colorado and in

·8· ·Washington.

  The rates of insurance claims and car

10· ·crashes in Washington have gone up. You can go on

11· ·YouTube and look that up and see that. In fact,

12· ·  tonight when you go home, go on YouTube and, 

13· ·it's amazing what you find and all the negative

14· ·effects of marijuana use.

15· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We need to stick to what you

16· ·have --

17·

18·

19·

20·

21·

  · MS. SCHANK:· Okay.

  · MS. SCHANK:· The essential question --

  · MR. TEDFORD:· -- facts to --

  · MS. SCHANK:· -- here is looking at the big

22· ·picture, we do have a sanctuary. I live here

23· ·  because I love this community, I love, the

24· ·people who lead and the things that they stand for.

25· Will the passing of legalizing what is

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 91
·1· ·mentioned on this bill make our community a better

·2· ·place? The answer is no, it will not. It will not

·3· ·make it better.

·4· · · · I know in the schools it won't make it a

·5· ·better place; we'll have to deal with all the side

·6· ·effects of what happens if these things are

·7· ·legalized. And I don't feel that this is too broad.

·8· ·I think it's wonderful, everything that's in here.

·9· ·It is a great ordinance the way it's written.

10·  · There's a saying in education, all that

11· ·teach toward the desired behavior. A desired

12·   ·  behavior as far as our youth is concerned

13· ·  is, that we pass this ordinance the way it's

14· ·written.

15·  · And studies have shown if adults have

16· ·more access then -- you know, obviously, it doesn't

17· ·take a rocket scientist to figure that out, that

18· ·  youth are going to have more access to it.

19·  ·  So, I'm, in favor of the way it's written

20· ·here. I don't think it's too broad. I love our

21· ·  community. I trust you as, authorities in our

22· ·community to make the right decision for our

23· ·families and our youth.

24· · · · And you have a lot of people here that are in

25· ·  positions of authority, that are speaking out

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 92

·6·

·8·

·1· ·tonight. I hope that you listen to them and trust

·2· ·their judgements. A lot of them have been elected

·3· ·by the people, they're in positions, been

·4· ·appointed by boards, and they're in

·5· ·favor of this way it's written.

So thank you very much for your time. And, 

·7· ·that's all I have to say. Thanks.

MR. TEDFORD:· For- -- before you go, Carmen, I

·9· ·have a couple questions. I think I'm missing a

10· ·  page. 

11·  ·   MS. SCHANK:· There should be three pages. 

12·    the first two front and back and the last one

13· ·y  you -- there was room to write notes on it. 

14· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Is this --

15· · · · MS. SCHANK:· -- and I had all of the resources

16· ·--

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- don't you have the sp- -- do

18· ·you have -- you know like you have.

19· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Can you compare it with somebody

20· ·who's sitting by you and maybe someone can make a

21· ·copy or if he's a missing a page?

22· · · · [talking in background, inaudible]

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I have this one citing the

24· ·source and --

25· · · · MALE:· Two other pages, right?

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 93
 ·  · ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Yeah, but, on the source one

·3·

·4·

·5·

·6·

·8·

·9·

·1·

·2· ·--

MS. SCHANK:· Mm-hmm.

MR. TEDFORD:· -- this cites, 

MALE:· You got it.

MR. TEDFORD:· -- I haven't been to school in a

·7· ·while. The source one is --

  ·MS. SCHANK:· It's on the back --

·MR. TEDFORD:· -- there's a --

10· · · · MS. SCHANK:· -- of the second page.

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- source one and then there's a

12· ·source one.

13· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Yeah, there's a -- there's an

14· ·extra resource on that last page there too. I just

15· ·stapled that on so that you had all of them.

16· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· That's just an extra source --

17· · · · MS. SCHANK:· Yeah.

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- to go read. Okay, I got it.

19· · · · MS. SCHANK:· In reference to --

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I got it.

21· · · · MS. SCHANK:· -- what's written on papers. So,

22· ·  you have local authority, you've been voted by

23· ·the people to make the right choice and I hope you

24· ·make the right choice tonight.

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you. I got it.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 94
·1·

·2·

  · MS. SCHANK:· Thank you.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Sorry I messed up

·3· ·there.

·4· · · · MS. SCHANK:· We appreciate everything you do

·5· ·because I know it's not easy.

·6· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· No. I know you don't.

·7· · · · MR. PERAZZO:· Good evening, Mayor Tedford.

·8· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Just sec, okay --

·9· · · · MR. PERAZZO:· Okay.

10· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· -- I -- I want to just clear one

11· ·  thing up. The

12· ·medical marijuana store is not by a school. You

13· ·know, it's the State law is written as --

14· ·[inaudible] know if you can't be by a school. So,

15· ·  if this passed in another form that allowed

16· ·it, they wouldn't be by schools ever. Okay? So --

17· · · · MS. SCHANK:· The medical marijuana [inaudible]

18· ·school is [inaudible].

19·    · MR. TEDFORD:· No, it's not by a school 

20· ·by law. It's not by a -- it doesn't matter how

21· ·  close we think it is by law it's not we

22· ·had that hearing a long time ago and it -- well,

23· ·  why don't you address the school issue, from

24· ·a legal standpoint. Do you want to sit down for

25·  ·just a sec? There's a lot of people

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 95

·4·

·5·

·1· ·here. I think it needs to be clear. You can't just

·2· ·be by a school. Let's just

·3· ·clear that up.

  MS. SCHANK:· [inaudible]

  MR. ERICKSON:· Yeah, I -- I think, Mr. Mayor,

·6· ·you point out that the statutes prescribed certain

·7· ·distances that facilities have to be from schools.

·8· ·That's not an issue for the City

·9· ·Council to address. That's in State law.

10· · · · ·The hearing I believe you're referencing was

11· ·  a prior hearing as it related to the

12· ·particular uses and a location of, the medical

13· ·marijuana facility.

14· · · · That issue's been decided by the Council, so

15· ·that's not subject for debate or conversation

16· ·tonight. But you're right, the City's not in a

17· ·position to allow any of these facilities with the

18· ·statutorily prescribed distance from a school.

19·

20·

21·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· How far is it, Robert?

  · MR. ERQUIAGA:· I believe it's a thousand feet.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you for that.

22· ·  It's hard to get a lawyer, let me tell you.

23· · · · [laughter in background]

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· It's a thousand feet. So, it

25· ·could be a thousand and one or it could be from

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 96

·3·

·6·

·1· ·what's what once was a school 999 feet.

·2· ·But, it's got to be a thousand feet.

 MALE 2:· Mr. Mayor, can we also for the

·4· ·record:· Only one, the zoning only, it goes

·5· ·by how much population in your community.

 So, in Fallon, only one business would be able

·7· ·to have a medical recreational dispensary,

·8· ·correct? And it has to be at least a thousand feet

·9· ·from a traditional school, so.

10· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· It'd be -- if you want medical

11· ·dispensary --

12· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· One medical and --

13· · · · MALE 2:· -- it could be two --

14· · · · MALE 3:· It could be two --

15· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· -- recreational facilities

16· ·within Churchill County --

17· · · · MALE 2:· In -- in Churchill County.

18· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· Yeah.

19· · · · MALE 2:· Okay, thank you.

20· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· And that's again, just

21· ·prescribed by State law.

22· · · · MALE 2:· Thank you.

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So, State law could change but

24· ·it's not [inaudible] we're going to change that

25· ·thousand feet, not our legislature. Oh, I don't

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 97

·5·

·7·

·9·

·1· ·know. You know, I said a lot of things about

·2· ·Congress, so. Present company excepted is leaving,

·3· ·but -- now legislatures can do anything. So,

·4· ·okay. Mr. Perazzo, come on you can do it.

MR. PERAZZO:· Mayor Tedford, Councilwoman

·6· ·Frost and Richardson, Erickson,

MR. TEDFORD:· I need your name and

·8· ·address.

  · MR. PERAZZO:· My name is Alan

10· ·Perazzo.

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I know your name Alan, but you

12· ·  have to say it into the microphone.

13· · · · [laughter in the background]

14· · · · MR. PERAZZO:· My address is 1025 Perazzo Lane,

15· ·  Fallon, Nevada, okay. I guess I'd just like to

16· ·  say, amen to the last -- I'm not going to

17· ·reiterate, I'm going to be quick. I'll just say

18· ·amen to the last four people that spoke. And

19· ·say that I'm in favor of this bill, 780.

20·  ·  I will say this is an eye opener to come

21· ·to this meeting and the first words that were

22· ·talked about was, yeah, it's against the law to do

23· ·this but it's also against the law to do this

24· ·recreational but we're doing this and so why don't

25· ·  we -- that confuses me because what, 

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 98

·3·

·7·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·world do we live on that we can do things that are

·2· ·against the law.

  · But here or there, it's legal medically,

·4· ·people have access to it. I don't feel we need it,

·5· ·recreationally. So, I'm in favor of this bill,

·6· ·780. Thank you. I got to go change the water.

 MR. TEDFORD:· I know.

  · [laughter in the background]

 MR. TEDFORD:· There you go.

10· · · · MS. DINGUS:· Hello, my name is Leslie Dingus

11· ·[ph], my address is 605 Sunrise Terrace, Fallon,

12· ·Nevada 89406.

13· · · · MS. MANZO:· Hi, I'm Michelle Manzo [ph]. My

14· ·address is 960 Concord Avenue, Fallon, Nevada

15· ·89406.

16·    · I'm an upcoming senior at

17· ·Churchill County High School. I am here to

18· ·represent myself.

19· · · · And until 17 youth risk behavior survey,

20· ·  [inaudible], they asked middle school kids a

21· ·question asking at what age did they first start

22· ·  using marijuana.

23· ·  A lot of the middle school kids answered

24· ·at the age of 11, which is around 5th and 6th

25· ·grade.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 99
 I have peers today who said that if they

·9·

·1·

·2· ·have recreational --

·3· ·shop industries in Fallon, that

·4· ·they would feel that it's more that the city's

·5· ·saying that it is a safe for it to be allowed and

·6· ·they would believe that the community would be

·7· ·allowed to say that it was okay when it's not in

·8· ·the [inaudible].

  · So, a lot of studies have showed that

10· ·teenagers who regularly use marijuana are more

11· ·likely to have lower IQs or higher dropout rates

12·   ·and also, worse on college exams so they do

13· ·worse on college exams. And it does get easier for

14· ·teenagers like us to get marijuana from anyone. And

15· ·we are concerned about our community and our

16· ·classmates.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you, girls.

18· · · · MS. MANZO:· Thank you.

19· · · · MS. DINGUS:· Yeah.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· You're very brave.

21· · · · [applause in the background]

22· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Very brave. Hi.

23· · · · MS. HARDWICK:· Hi. Good evening. For the

24· ·record, Linda Hardwick, 3909 London Circle, Fallon,

25· ·Nevada. I've been sitting listening to all this

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 100
·1· ·tonight and I'm just going to read some of the

·2· ·thoughts that have come to me. So, forgive me for

·3· ·looking down.

·4· · · · But it's bad enough that the State has

·5· ·legalized the use of marijuana. However, Fallon and

·6· ·Churchill County citizens should not be sheeple

·7· ·[sic]. We shouldn't comply with things that people

·8· ·from out of the area think we should.

·9· · · · These visitors don't know the community, they

10· ·don't care about it like those of us who live here,

11· ·love it and want to preserve the uniqueness of it.

12· · · · So, with all due respect to the out of towners

13· ·and to use a bumper sticker message, we don't care

14· ·how things are done in Reno, Las Vegas or

15· ·California.

16· · · · [laughter in background]

17· · · · MS. HARDWICK:· So, for many reasons --

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Now, qu- -- will you be quiet --

19· · · · MS. HARDWICK:· -- for many reasons I would ask

20· ·that you please don't California-cate Fallon any

21· ·more than it is now. Thank you.

22·

23·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thanks, Linda.

  · MR. MARION JONTE:· Good evening, I'm Marion

24· ·Tedford and the Council. Goodness. What else can be

25· ·said? Fallon people have stood up. Fallon people

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 101

·6·

·1· ·have spoken for their community. Fallon people have

·2· ·reiterated that the vote count and that our

·3· ·city is the only city in the county, so the county

·4· ·is represented in a city and the city's represented

·5· ·in the county.

  The people who've spoken before me are

·7· ·educated, very articulate, very well informed,

·8· ·they're leaders in our community, they're people

·9· ·that we depend on; they're people that we listen

10· ·to.

11· · · · Please, Council, take into advice these people

12· ·from your own town. I am amazed tonight that this

13· ·huge terrible, terrible drug industry is so much

14· ·ingrained in people that they have to come from out

15· ·of town and out of state to come and try to

16· ·convince people who love their community, love

17· ·their kids, to change their way of living.

18· · · · I know that we already have a medical

19· ·marijuana dispensary and that is now history, but

20· ·we need not add to that with recreational

21· ·marijuana. We all have heard tonight from good

22· ·sources that it makes it much easier for our kids.

23· · · · We've also heard that marijuana is a gateway

24· ·to further drugs and we've already got enough

25· ·problems with that. And I think if I read

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 102

·4·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·correctly, the State is taking the resources

·2· ·from the marijuana sales to enhance and build a new

·3· ·drug enforcement unit, if I read that correctly.

 And, so I urge you, please, to go

·5· ·ahead and pass your ordinance because your

·6· ·community's depending on you. Thank you for your

·7· ·time.

  MR. TEDFORD:· Thanks, Marion [ph].

  DONNA COSSETTE:· I'm going to -- [speaking a

10· ·  different language]. I want to thank you, Mayor

11· ·Tedford and Council members for having this

12·   ·opportunity for the community to speak. I

13· ·live at 275 South Bailey Street in Fallon, Nevada

14· ·89406.

15·  · I would have to say about, the late

16· ·'90s I signed a petition in front of the old

17· ·Raley's Supermarket, it said do you want marijuana

18· ·sold in your community and I said, yes, I do.

19· ·Personal reasons was for medical marijuana. I think

20· ·it should be available to our communities in which

21· ·you have -- and our community already has that.

22· · · · But at the same time, I support your bill of

23· ·780 and for our community because we are the oasis

24· ·of Nevada. Fallon, Nevada is the oasis of Nevada

25· ·and it should be kept that way for our children to

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 103

·6·

·1· ·preserve and so our children can go to school

·2· ·without having these peer pressures before them.

·3· ·It's all around them. It's enough with alcoholism,

·4· ·it's enough with other types of drugs, but

·5· ·don't let this also be another one.

 Now, I work with, I subcontract with the

·7· ·Churchill Coalition and I visited with them not too

·8· ·long ago and they asked me about a really cool

·9· ·video that they were doing recently, and they do a

10· ·very good job in our community about educating the

11· ·community on the uses of drugs and trying to reach

12· ·out to our community in getting the children to

13· ·  really understand what it means when you

14· ·get involved with that.

15· · · · And when I went there, they said, hey, check

16· ·this out. I just wanted to share with you there's

17· ·over 60 plus percent of women -- I don't have those

18· ·stats in front me -- who use -- pregnant women who

19· ·use medical -- or who use marijuana when they go

20· ·and have their children. And then I guess at that -

21· ·- I was astonished how they even got those numbers,

22· ·  but, it was astonishing.

23· · · · And I said, is that all pregnant women? They

24· ·said yes. So, right out of the chute. These aren't

25· ·even lives yet, born lives. These children are

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 104

·3·

·7·

·1· ·being subjected to something that's not even

·2· ·voluntary.

 you know, it's involuntary for them. And we

·4· ·have a hard task ahead of us to try and, deter

·5· ·our community from the uses and the bad effects of

·6· ·those uses of -- of marijuana recreationally.

 Medically, they do serve a purpose, I know. I

·8· ·have my father-in-law who's now since passed away,

·9· ·his doctor said, get him some marijuana. We had no

10· ·-- I didn't know where to get marijuana.

11· · · · He couldn't use it. We didn't know where to

12· ·get it, it was illegal. So, he suffered because his

13· ·medicines were just not working, they were making

14· ·him sicker and sicker, and he was starving himself.

15· You know, with our, military community

16· ·here, I'm sure it's still against the law for a

17· ·military personnel to use medical -- or to use

18· ·marijuana and still be honorably discharged. It's,

19· ·you know, it's against the law, I'm pretty sure it

20· ·is.

21· · · · They'd probably get a dishonorable discharge

22· ·and if we make it that much more easier for our

23·   ·young, military men in our community to

24· ·use the medical mar- -- or to use the marijuana,

25· ·then it'll probably be -- we're making it easier

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 105

·3·

·9·

·1· ·for them to have access to, that marijuana in

·2· ·our community.

 Now, I don't live too far from the dispensary

·4· ·today, maybe like three or four blocks. But I hope

·5· ·what -- those communities with -- around there, you

·6· ·know, their property values don't go down. I don't

·7· ·know if that happens, I'm sure in other communities

·8· ·it does.

 Crime rate, I don't want to see our crime

10· ·  rate in the city of Fallon to go up, you know, 

11· ·within our community.

12· And I do want to say this that, the

13· ·reference to Nancy Pelosi was uncalled for. I'm

14· ·sure that, well -- as you know that -- that you

15· ·have -- in a previous comment, of calling her

16· ·Pocahontas, we have community members who are of

17· ·Shoshone decent and it was not called for. I just

18· ·wanted to add -- put that on the record as well.

19· · · ·  but anyways that's just my comment

20· ·and I support your bill as well. Thank you.

21· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

22· · · · MR. RUSSELL:· Mayor Tedford, Councilmen,

23· ·Councilwoman, my name is Steven Russell. I am the

24· ·chairman of the Churchill Community Coalition. I'm

25· ·also retired from the Churchill County school

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 106

·3·

·8·

·1· ·system. I was director of transportation and

·2· ·safety.

 We tasked a coalition to, put a

·4· ·survey out with the top 10 employers for the state,

·5· ·for the county and for the city of Fallon and the

·6· ·business, employee ranges from 600 employees to

·7· ·100 employees.

  What we asked for is that they had a drug

·9· ·policy or a non, marijuana use policy in

10· ·their hiring practices. And nine of the ten

11· ·businesses do have a policy in place that does not

12· ·allow marijuana use.

13·  ·   We also found that seven of the ten,

14· ·businesses, or employers in the county also receive

15· ·federal funds. Those who receive federal funds have

16· ·  to have a non marijuana smoking policy in

17· ·  their, drug program. The school district has

18· ·one, Walmart has one, the Base has a non-drug use

19· ·policy as well.

20·  · We feel that, if we're going to

21· ·attract more businesses to our community and if we

22· ·  keep our employees drug free it's going to

23·   ·increase the productivity of the employees

24· ·that are working there.

25·  · Meanwhile, we have GE Construction

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 107

·9·

·1· ·Company, Johnson's Construction Company and

·2· ·Colorado Springs put an article in the, 

·3· ·Colorado Springs Gazette paper where he was having

·4· ·trouble hiring individuals that were drug free to

·5· ·work in his construction company because he was an

·6· ·employer and the safety concerns that they have of

·7· ·people working in construction and that he's had to

·8· ·go out of state to hire most of his employees.

  I'll leave a copy with this with you. It

10· ·has references on where we got our information.

11· ·Thank you.

12· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay, thank you. If you could

13· ·leave that with Val. We appreciate it. I'll have it

14· ·incorporated in the record. Thank you.

15· · · · MR. RUSSELL:· Yes, sir.

16· · · · MR. REESE [ph]:· I'd like to submit this, sir.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Yes, sir.

18· · · · MR. REESE:· My name is Jim Reese and I'm an

19· ·obstetrician/gynecologist with Banner right down

20·   ·the street and I've worked here since, June of

21· ·last year. And I think many of us here -- oh, I'm

22· ·sorry. My address is 615 Great Basin Lane, Fallon,

23· ·Nevada 89406.

24· · · · I think many of us can recall the movie Jaws

25· ·where the child was eaten right off the shore and

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 108

·3·

·8·

·1· ·the mother went to the sheriff and said, Sheriff

·2· ·Brody, you knew the waters were dangerous.

You knew the waters were dangerous, they're

·4· ·unsafe. And you opened the beaches. Here the waters

·5· ·are the use of marijuana in pregnancy. It is clear,

·6· ·that there is absolutely no positive affect of

·7· ·marijuana use during pregnancy.

 November of 2017, the American

·9· ·College of Obstetrics and Gynecology published

10· ·a committee opinion.

11· · · · Nowhere in that committee opinion can I see

12· ·any recommendation for the use of either

13· ·  recreational or medical juan marijuana during

14· ·pregnancy. And the reason for that is that it's

15· ·dangerous. Just like the waters are dangerous,

16· ·using marijuana in pregnancy is dangerous.

17· So, for some of the data that has been

18· ·mentioned already, there's an increase in

19· ·stillbirth, there's an increase in low-birth-weight

20· ·babies, there are problems and detriments in visual

21· ·and problem solving, detriments in visual and motor

22· ·coordination, problems with visual analysis and

23· ·teacher observed poor reading and spelling skills.

24· · · · What is very important also to note is

25· ·specifically in the first trimester of pregnancy,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 109
·1· ·there's an increased incidence of anencephaly where

·2· ·the fetal brain is essential missing. This, of

·3· ·course, is incompatible with life. Sometimes it

·4· ·can take up to a year for these babies to die.

·5· ·That's a terrible thing for the family, for the

·6· ·caregivers, and it is clear from the day that it

·7· ·was published in November of 2017 that there is an

·8· ·increased incidence of this finding, during

·9· ·pregnancy.

10· · · · Now, what is so important is just this month,

11· ·  American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology

12· ·published recommendations from cannabis

13· ·dispensaries about the first trimester cannabis use

14· ·and I think that you have that.

15· · · · And upwards of 70 percent in Colorado of the

16· ·cannabis -- the retail cannabis stores recommended

17· ·pot use to treat nausea and vomiting in pregnancy.

18· ·So, it's clear that we know that there is an

19· ·adverse effect of the use of marijuana in

20· ·pregnancy.

21·      It is clear that there are

22· ·fetal malformations but just in Colorado, the

23· ·retail industry is recommending the use of

24· ·marijuana. And you will have this, June

25· ·publication.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 110
  ·   So, I think the facts are before you

·7·

·8·

·9·

·1·

·2· ·I would request respectfully, that five

·3· ·years henceforth that we do not look back on this

·4· ·day and think, gosh, we had the opportunity to make

·5· ·a difference to protect the future generation of

·6· ·the citizens of Fallon.

 Do you have any questions, sir? City Council?

 MR. TEDFORD:· Does Council have any questions?

 MR. RICHARDSON:· For the record, I would never

10·   ·support pregnant women using marijuana, 

11· ·regardless of any situation or any laws or any

12· ·zoning things that we have decide. I mean --

13· · · · MR. REESE:· Yes, sir. I think what --

14· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· -- I guess what we're talking

15· ·about tonight.

16· · · · MR. REESE:· Yes, sir.

17· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· I was just making a

18· ·statement, sorry.

19·

20·

  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you. Yes, sir.

  ·   MR. HARTMAN:· Mr. Mayor, and,

21· ·Councilmembers. For the record, my name is Jim

22· ·Hartman and I'm coming to the big city tonight

23· ·  from Genoa, Nevada.

24·  ·  laughter in background] My 

25· ·residential address is 254 Genoa Highland Circle,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 111

·4·

·7·

·1· ·and I was, in the last election campaign I was

·2· ·the president of Nevadans for Responsible Drug

·3· ·Policy. And we were actively opposing Question 2.

 And want to point out that that passed, as you

·5· ·know, statewide by a hundred thousand votes, all of

·6· ·which came from Clark County.

 The margin in Clark County was a hundred

·8· ·thousand votes; it passed statewide by a hundred

·9· ·thousand votes. It actually lost in 13 of 17

10· ·counties including the county I reside in, Douglas

11· ·County. It lost by 15 points in Douglas County and

12· ·20 points here in Churchill County.

13·  ·   Douglas County, within two or three months

14· ·of the passage of that initiative, elected

15· ·unanimously their board of commissioners adopted a

16· ·very similar ordinance for the one that you're

17· ·looking at tonight.

18·  ·   It was unanimously passed

19· ·the Planning Commission and then unanimously was

20· ·  adopted by the the County Commission.

21· · · · I also have to make -- I'm a recovering

22· ·  attorney -- [laughter in background]  

23· ·  and worked on this campaign for free.

24·  ·   I mean, I did not draw a salary, but I did

25· ·  it out of a commitment. I also need to make 

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 112

·3·

·4·

·9·

·1· ·an admission that I grew up in Berkeley,

·2· ·California, which --

  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Oh, my goodness.

  ·   MR. HARTMAN:· [laughter in background]

·5· ·Which I probably should have stopped there. But

·6· ·I actually went back, so you have a

·7· ·picture why I got so involved in the No on Two

·8· ·campaign.

 I went back to my 50th high school reunion and

10·   ·I was student body president and the

11· ·senior class president was there who lives in

12· ·Colorado. And he said, Jim, you're retired, why

13· ·don't you go out and work hard on Question 2

14· ·because it's been a real terrible thing for my

15· ·state of Colorado.

16·    · And, he would clip the newspaper and send

17· ·me clippings regularly to inspire me to stay active

18·   ·and all. I hope some of you get a chance to

19· ·read the Weekly Standards edition of June 18th, it

20· ·just came out.

21· · · · It's called Refer Madness. It's 12 pages long

22· ·but it talks about what happened in Pueblo,

23· ·  Colorado, and the problems in Pueblo,

24· ·Colorado. They commercialized marijuana in Pueblo,

25· ·  Colorado and it's a sad story. I hope you

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 113
·1· ·get a chance to -- to reflect on that.

·2· · · · The other thing I think you need to reflect on

·3· ·is, legalization is a whole series of issues,

·4· ·whether you should legalize marijuana.

·5· · · · But there's a whole separate series of issues

·6· ·relating to commercializing marijuana, and that's

·7· ·what you're being asked to do here. Commercializing

·8· ·marijuana. Allowing pot shops to open in your

·9· ·community.

10· · · · Grow operations to operate in your community.

11· ·The overwhelming majority view in Colorado, whether

12· ·it's 68 percent -- I've got numbers of 73 percent

13· ·of cities, towns and counites don't allow

14· ·commercialized marijuana in their communities.

15· · · · California passed a legalization proposal at

16· ·the same time Nevada did. Right now, less than 30

17· ·percent of the cities and towns in California are

18· ·commercializing, approve commercializing there.

19· ·Only 18 of 58 counties will allow pot shops to

20· ·operate in California.

21·    · And Massachusetts passed an initiative at

22· ·the same time Nevada passed an initiative. And

23· ·right now 190 of 351 communities in Massachusetts

24· ·have said no marijuana in our community. We don't

25· ·want it here.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 114
·1· · · · That's the dirty little secret of the pot

·2· ·promoters, is the fact that is when it comes to

·3· ·cities and towns, more towns are like this one then

·4· ·there are that want to approve commercialized

·5· ·marijuana.

·6· · · · Marin County in California, the -- you know,

·7· ·the magic mountain, people all wanted to go to the

·8· ·magic mountain in the '60s --

·9· · · · [laughter in the background]

10·    · MR. HARTMAN:·It had a 72 percent

11· ·approval of legalizing marijuana. But what do you

12· ·think the Board of Supervisors did in Marin County?

13· ·They said, we don't want it here.

14· · · · There are 11 jurisdictions in Marin County.

15· ·Sausalito voted 77 percent to legalize it but they

16· ·said, hey, we don't want it here, not in our

17· ·community, not with our kids.

18· · · · You know, Albany borders Berkeley, 77 percent

19· ·of the voters in Albany said, let's legalize

20· ·  marijuana but what did their City Council

21· ·do? They said, hey, we don't want it here, not in

22· ·Albany.

23· · · · So, my urge to you, in the strongest terms is

24· ·do what's right for your community. I heard from

25· ·your community tonight. Your community doesn't want

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 115

·5·

·1· ·to commercialize it. And I hope you vote for your

·2· ·Ordinance 780 and -- and do what's right for

·3· ·the community of Fallon, Nevada. Thank you very

·4· ·much.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you, sir. I Appreciate     

·6· ·One thing you get on this issue and going

·7· ·back to May 1st, you get passion on both sides and

·8· ·I appreciate that very much. And, I enjoy

·9· ·passion. In fact our [inaudible] and passion and

10· ·  just last week, enjoy that. Thank you, sir.

11· · · · Yes, sir.

12· · · · MR. AKIM:· Hi, my name is Tim Akim [ph]. I

13· ·  live at 495 West Center Street here in Fallon.

14·    One of the things I have really appreciated about

15· ·Fallon in my, I think, 12 years I've lived here has

16· ·  been, the relative safety of this town and this

17· ·area.

18·  ·   I grew up in Fresno, California in an area

19· ·  that wasn't so great. I can't speak, 

20· ·  exactly about, legalization of drugs and what

21· ·that does and recreational

22· ·facilities where it's legal but what I can speak to

23· ·is what happens when people have to have drugs.

24·  ·  Growing in my house -- well, I can

25·   ·tell you right now, I have three young kids

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 116

·6·

·1· ·at home. I can tell you also that growing up I

·2· ·don't know now many times people who are not

·3· ·invited into our house were there to take things

·4· ·from us because they had to have drugs and they

·5· ·needed money to get it.

I don't know how many times I was on a street

·7· ·and people tried to sell me things because they

·8· ·wanted money to buy drugs, whether it was a story

·9· ·of having food that they were trying to

10· ·sell me that someone gave them because they gave

11· ·the story that they were hungry and they tried to

12· ·resell it to get drugs or batteries, you name it.

13· ·  I want this town to continue to be

14· ·safe for my kids. Thanks.

15·  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Now that was happening in

16· ·Fresno, right? Yeah. Okay. We'll make sure that --

17· ·[laughter] -- that, yeah --

18· · · · MALE:· And not in Fallon yet --

19· · · · MR. AKIM:· And I hope it never does.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. My daughter's played

21·   ·travel ball in Fresno and some softball

22· ·there to do this day. Relative safety is not the

23· ·word you want to use in relationship to Fresno and

24· ·Fallon. [laughter] Okay. Thanks, Tim, I appreciate

25· ·it. West Center Street's -- it's right over here.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 117
  ·    Hey, Jan.

  ·    JAN BROWN:· Good evening, and thank you for having

·6·

·1·

·2·

·3· ·this hearing and I appreciate the council and

·4· ·everything. My name is Jan Brown and I live at 290

·5· ·West Richard Street here in Fallon.

 I'm here to try to encourage you to

·7· ·support the 780 ordinance or bill, whatever you

·8· ·want to call it. I'd like to echo most of what

·9· ·the people in favor of this bill had said, but I

10· ·just wanted to add one more thing.

11·  · I've never tried marijuana or any other

12· ·drug for that matter, but I talked to people about

13· ·  the pros and cons and -- and I said, well, I

14· ·know they've had a lot of problems in Colorado with

15· ·  crime and the amount of revenue that they

16· ·get in taxes nowhere comes near the amount that it

17· ·costs in crime and all these other things.

18· · · · And I said but, I don't know, I said there's

19· ·  countries in Europe where I guess there's no

20· ·problem. And one of the guys that I was talking to

21· ·  said, oh, don't be fooled by that. He

22· ·says, I lived in Belgium for three years and he

23· ·says, it is terrible.

24· · · · He says, there's people in the parks, they

25· ·just all spaced out. And they have -- the people

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 118

·4·

·8·

·1· ·have no motivation. He says, it's just a waste --

·2· ·useless society that they're

·3· ·coming up with.

 But anyway, I just thought I'd throw that out.

·5· ·It's not just this country, Colorado, Washington,

·6· ·and the places where it's -- and they've had a

·7· ·longer time to see the effects of it in Europe.

 So I just thought I'd throw that out so you

·9· ·all know it. And thanks again for being here

10· ·and for what you're doing.

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

12· · · · MS. BROWN:· You're welcome.

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Anyone else? Okay. Is anybody

14· ·okay? We're still on those in favor. Yes, ma'am.

15·  ·   MS. JOHNSON:· Ellen Johnson, 7616, Mission

16· ·Road. Good evening Mayor Tedford and council. I

17·   ·want to speak in support of, bill 780. I'm a

18· ·mother with four daughters. I'm a grandmother of

19· ·seven grandchildren and a great-grandmother of one

20· ·great-grandson.

21·    · And my family's lived in this area for

22· ·approximately 75 years. My mother was one of the

23· ·children that went to Oaks Park School when she was

24· ·12 years old. So we have an investment in this

25· ·community.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 119
 · · · I love this community. I have a brother who is

·5·

·1·

·2· ·quite a [inaudible] key. You might know him. He's

·3· ·been in the community for a while. His name is Matt

·4· ·Johnson. Well, he got into an accident.

 It was drug- and alcohol-related. But you

·6· ·know, people say so many good things about

·7· ·marijuana, what it does. He doesn't use marijuana.

·8· ·He's a quadriplegic. He struggled for 35 years with

·9· ·pain, with mental problems.

10· · · · He's worked that out. He's worked it out

11· ·through the love of his family, the support of his

12· ·  community, through prayer, through his

13· ·belief system, and he has not touched marijuana

14· ·since that accident.

15·  ·  I have a nephew who's had, recently two

16· ·years ago had brain surgery because of a tumor on

17· ·his brain stem. He didn't turn to marijuana to ease

18· ·his pain, to cope with life. He turned to his

19· ·family, his community, to his faith belief system.

20·   · He didn't need any of it. I know that

21· ·there are many people in the recovery community

22· ·that I'm part of. I've been clean and sober for 35

23· ·years. And I've heard stories over the years of

24·   ·people coming out of their lines of

25· ·addiction and where it starts a lot of times is

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 120

·2·

·7·

·1· ·marijuana.

And kids these days, I hear stories from the

·3· ·kids, they don't go to alcohol which used to be the

·4· ·gateway drug, they go to marijuana first. They skip

·5· ·over tobacco, they skip over alcohol, go right to

·6· ·marijuana. That's where they start.

And there's terrible stories. I

·8· ·just heard one recently,from a 12-year-old

·9· ·boy. He's been addicted to marijuana for two

10· ·years. He started when he was 10 years old. A

11· ·responsible, seemingly responsible adult got him

12·   ·high at 10 years old

13· and introduced him to marijuana. His dad's

14· ·  girlfriend. So, you know, contributing to the

15· ·delinq- -- delinquency of a minor used to be an

16· ·alcohol to a minor, you know, giving alcohol to a

17· ·minor.

18· · · · It's not going to be that if we allow this

19·   ·because the recreational drug of choice is

20· ·going to be a marijuana in this community if this

21· ·  goes forward, you know, with the allowing the, 

22· ·  zoning to -- to go forward.

23·  ·   So I have an uncle who's a veteran of the

24· ·Vietnam War. He's a paratrooper. He came back with

25· ·ma- -- malaria and he came back with PTSD. He

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 121

·3·

·7·

·1· ·had a drinking problem for a while but today 

·2·  he's drug and alcohol free.

 He did not turn to marijuana to ease his PTSD.

·4· ·He turned to the support of his community, to the

·5· ·love of his family and to his faith belief system.

·6· ·And I say these things can be done.

 We need to put our resources to those areas.

·8· ·To our faith community, to our recovery community,

·9· ·to our families, strengthen those things. Let's

10· ·bolster those things.

11· · · · Let's not turn to the pharmaceuticals because

12· ·I think really that's the wrong way to go for our

13· ·  families and for our community. And, I love

14·   ·this community. I love knowing my neighbors. I

15· ·  just think it's a terrible thing.

16· · · · And you know, what affects the outlying areas,

17· ·the counties, it affects this place too. You know,

18· ·  when we come to town, you know, we want to make

19· ·sure our children are safe. That's why it's such a

20· ·great community.

21· · · · I went to take my family to an amusement park

22· ·over the summer and we checked into a hotel and it

23· ·smelled like skunk in there. It's like, change my

24· ·room, please. I don't like this smell. And it's not

25· ·something I want to expose my little grandchildren

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 122

·2·

·5·

·1· ·to, and my mom that I took with me too.

 We had to get out of there because it was so

·3· ·horrible to be exposed to that. And that's not

·4· ·something I want for our community.

 You know, I want to be able to go to the

·6· ·Cantaloupe Festival and just have good old fashioned

·7· ·fun, you know, or to the farmer's market. I don't

·8· ·want to have to worry about what's happening with

·9· ·people having their moods altered to a

10· ·point, you know.

11· · · · And I've talked to young people who are using,

12· ·  gorilla glue and other tantalizing names

13·   ·to their marijuana like girl scout cookies,

14· ·you know. Those are the things that our kids are

15· ·  facing, you know are those choices. Those

16· ·choices are going to be out there once it becomes

17· ·recreational.

18· · · · And that's, you know, that's something we have

19· ·the power to control right here. We -- it's a big

20· ·experiment. We don't know what the long term

21· ·effects are going to be. It's all an unknown right

22· ·now.

23· · · · There are no long-term studies that have been

24· ·  published on this. So I don't think there's a

25· ·big rush to start setting up these businesses. I

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 123

·4·

·9·

·1· ·don't think there's a big rush for our sites

·2· ·to do that. I think let's sit back, let's see what

·3· ·the long-term results are going to be.

 And I think some of it's come forward with a

·5· ·lot of the information that members of our

·6· ·community have come forward too saying that this is

·7· ·probably the wrong thing right now, let's just

·8· ·wait, you know.

 Because right now it is an experiment and it's

10· ·an experiment that's probably going to go really

11· ·wrong for a lot of the communities in Denver,

12· ·Colorado, in California and some places. I want to

13· ·  thank you for your time and for your patience.

14· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you. Appreciate it. Okay.

15· ·Is there anybody else that is for this and we'll go

16· ·to -- okay. We're going to go to the neutral here

17· ·really quick. Okay? Yes.

18· · · · MS. CHAMBERLAIN:· Good evening. My name is

19· ·  Mary Beth Chamberlain. I live at 455 West

20· ·Center Street, Fallon, Nevada. I'm representing

21· ·myself as a resident of the community.

22· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

23· · · · MS. CHAMBERLAIN:· Legal marijuana shops are

24· ·linked to higher levels of property crime in nearby

25· ·areas according to -- there was a study that was

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 124

·2·

·9·

·1· ·done in Denver for nearly three years.

 So this study showed that there was about 84

·3· ·more property crimes per year the

·4· ·neighborhoods without the nearby recreational

·5· ·marijuana. In Denver, the crime rate has grown 44

·6· ·percent as reported by the national incident based

·7· ·reporting system. Oh, I have one of these for

·8· ·everyone.

 Sorry. The rate of violent crimes per 100,000

10· ·people spiked 3.4 perfect in Colorado driven by

11· ·increases in homicide rates and violence assaults.

12·   ·This is per the Colorado Bureau of

13· ·Investigation.

14·  ·   Let's see. So that was from 2015 to 2016.

15·   ·The number of rates increased 7.2 percent,

16· ·  robberies in Colorado increased 5.9 percent and

17· ·  homicides marked 9.9 perfcent. I don't want this in

18· ·my neighborhood.

19· · · · This is two blocks away from my home, this

20· ·medical marijuana that's wanting to go

21· ·  recreational. My neighborhood is, there's a lot

22· ·of young families moving in. I'm sure we don't want

23· ·that. And I'm really hoping that you guys approve

24· ·this ordinance.

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Thank you.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 125
 · · · MS. ZELLER:· Hi everyone. I'm Kadie Zeller,

·4·

·1·

·2· ·5855 Sheckler Road for the record. I'd like to make

·3· ·a point.

   Earlier I heard someone saying that, oh, big

·5· ·cities are always drawing out our young people,

·6· ·and all of these things. But I have to admit like

·7· ·looking around the room there's a lot of peers that

·8· ·I grew up with who are coming back into this

·9· ·community and wanting to be a part of it.

10·  ·  I'm starting my own nonprofit. There's a

11· ·few other people on here who are doing really great

12· ·  things that has nothing to do, with the current

13· ·thing at hand.

14· · · · But I just wanted to say that there are people

15· ·my age and younger coming back and wanting to give

16· ·back to the community that's given back so much to

17· ·  them. I'm going to talk lightly on, the

18· ·  homelessness that's associated with

19·    recreational use and it's, the site sources are

20· ·on the paper that I gave you.

21· · · · So the writer from the LA Times says I've

22· ·spent several months interviewing dozens of at

23· ·homeless shelters throughout Colorado. And the

24·   ·general consensus was since out,

25· ·pardon me, since Colorado launched its legal

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 126

·4·

·7·

·1· ·marijuana market in 2014, 20 to 30 percent of

·2· ·newcomers from the shelter and other major cities

·3· ·said they've come to be a part of cannabis.

 So that's not saying that the indigenous

·5· ·population are terrible people. That's not what I'm

·6· ·saying at all.

 What I am saying is that people uproot

·8· ·themselves to go be a part of this industry

·9· ·generally because they either believe that it's

10· ·what they want to do with their lives or it's

11· ·fiscal, financial.

12· · · · And I actually have friends who were a part of

13· ·  the recreational, industry specifically in

14· ·Reno.

15· · · · And he was using because he started going, oh

16· ·marijuana is the thing to do. He was using it

17· ·for his anxiety and eventually had to quit because

18· ·it exacerbated a lot of his mental illness.

19·  ·   And he said I started it for the

20· ·  [inaudible] and I stayed in for the money.

21· ·  And I find that with a lot of people my age, 

22· ·who are getting into that. And as for the crime,

23· ·  as per the Colorado Bureau of investigation,

24· ·crime has increased.

25·  ·   and these increased rates are tied to the

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 127

·7·

·1· ·transient population associated with the

·2· ·recreational marijuana industry. There's no

·3· ·question that marijuana and other drugs in

·4· ·combination with mental illness and other disabling

·5· ·conditions are essential contributors to chronic

·6· ·homelessness.

  · And there's been the point of it's already

·8· ·here. Sure. There's this belief that there's

·9· ·something that we can't prevent because 

10· ·it's in our community already.

11· · · · But -- and all of the young people that I've

12· ·talked to and spoken with and worked in the

13·   ·schools, there's a genuine belief that, oh well,

14· ·  if the community thinks it's okay. If it's

15· ·recreational then absolutely it's okay.

16· · · · When I was in college I was under 21 and I

17· ·didn't use, but it was very easily accessible for

18· ·my peers to get because we had friends that were

19· ·21.

20·    · So it perpetuates this belief that if

21· ·someone that's 21 can use this and they're using it

22· ·for whatever reason, it's okay for me to use

23· ·because that's the mind -- that's the eye and the

24· ·mind of a minor. It's, you know, they're going to

25· ·believe what they see not what we tell them. So

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 128

·2·

·6·

·1· ·thank you.

· MR. TEDFORD:· Okay, thank you.

·3· ·Appreciate it. Anyone else in favor? Okay. We'll go

·4· ·go to the neutral. Anyone who is neutral

·5· ·on this issue that would like to testify?

· MR. KABRAL:· Hello Mr. Mayor and council

·7· ·members. My name is Josh Kabral. I'm the

·8· ·residential program director at the treatment

·9· ·center in new frontier here in town.

10·  ·   I come up in the neutral category because

11· ·I can't have an opinion with some of the stuff I'm

12· ·going to give to you so I'll try to keep my opinion

13· ·out of it.

14· · · · We've heard a lot of statistics and numbers in

15· ·different communities in different states. I just

16·   ·wanted to give you some numbers about the

17·   ·local community here 

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I'm going to tell you

19· ·[inaudible] you're giving us numbers we're going to

20· ·need it for the record.

21· · · · MR. KABRAL:· That's fine.

22· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Josh? Even if you're

23· ·neutral.

24· · · · MR. KABRAL:· That's absolutely fine.

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 129
  · MR. KABRAL:· So I guess the address that I

·9·

·1·

·2· ·represent is 1490 Grime Street here at Fallon. 

·3· ·so I'll try to keep it real brief. Basically I

·4· ·pulled the numbers out of our electronic health

·5· ·record system to look at admissions and

·6· ·treatment services provided to different age

·7· ·groups and compare marijuana to other

·8· ·substances.

  · And I just want to give a couple of those

10· ·  numbers out. I can email this out to you later. 

11· ·so the categories that I ran were ages zero to 11,

12· ·ages 12 to 17, ages 18 to 24, and then ages 25

13· ·plus.

14·  · And these are folks who are looking at

15· ·  diagnosis of cannabis use disorder, which has

16· ·comes from the DSM-V diagnostic statistical manual.

17·  ·   The numbers I'm going to give you right

18· ·now are from June 1 of 2017 to May 31st of 2018,

19· ·  and these are services provided to clients

20·   ·who, have a substance use disorder, that's

21· ·cannabis related.

22· · · · So zero to 11 years old we sold to total of

23·   ·seven clients between those dates. Four of

24· ·them did not have a substance use disorder at all,

25· ·they were mental health related.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 130
 · · · Three of them did have a substance use

·6·

·1·

·2· ·disorder and all of those three were cannabis

·3· ·related. Ages 12 to 17 we served a total of 60

·4· ·clients. 37 of the 60 were cannabis-related. Ages

·5· ·18 to 24 we served 190 clients.

 Thirty-two of those were cannabis

·7· ·related. And, ages 25 plus we served 565

·8· ·clients, 37 of those were cannabis related. To put

·9· ·that in perspective -- and again, I'll email this

10· ·  out so zero to 11, 100 perfect of the

11· ·clients had a substance use disorder related to

12· ·marijuana.

13·  ·   ages 12 to 17, more than 50 percent

14· ·of the clients that we served were related to

15· ·  marijuana. We had 106 residential treatment

16· ·admissions from July 1st to today, 106 residential

17· ·  admissions that have cannabis use disorder.

18·  ·   And the time total from June 1st to

19· ·current we have three -- we've served a total of

20· ·345 clients that suffer from substance use

21· ·disorder.

22·  ·   I have a lot more numbers and a lot more

23· ·  statistics if you want to hear them but those

24· ·are kind of the highlights and I know it's getting

25· ·late so I'll kind of leave it at that unless

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 131

·2·

·4·

·6·

·8·

·1· ·anybody has questions.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Anybody have any questions for

·3· ·Josh?

 MR. ERICKSON:· So you're seeing a spike is

·5· ·what your stats are telling you?

 MR. KABRAL:· That is part of what the stats

·7· ·are telling us. Yes.

 MR. ERICKSON:· And that's occurring although

·9· · we haven't even made any action tonight.

10· · · · MR. KABRAL:· Correct.

11· · · · MR. ERICKSON:· Okay. Thank you.

12· · · · MS. FROST:· Can I clarify your numbers on,

13· ·from June 1st last year to current?

14·

15·

    · MR. KABRAL:· Yes.

  ·   MS. FROST:· Where is it? You said 345

16· ·clients and all of those are related to marijuana

17· ·or is that --

18· · · · MR. KABRAL:· So 345 clients that we've served

19· ·have had a subst -- or a cannabis use disorder.

20· ·We've served what, 726 total.

21· · · · MS. FROST:· Thank you.

22· · · · MR. KABRAL:· Thank you.

23· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay. Name and record

24· ·[inaudible].

25·  · MS. ZELLER:· Good evening Mayor Tedford,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 132

·5·

·1· ·Councilwoman Frost, Councilman Richardson and

·2· ·Erickson. I'm Andrea Zeller. I live at 5855

·3· ·Sheckler Road in Fallon and I am here on behalf of

·4· ·Churchill Coalition. I'm going to keep this short.

  We had some really great statistics and I am

·6· ·very impressed, people have been doing their

·7· ·homework. I heard a lot of comments tonight.

·8· ·I'm not sure if Jesus's feet were really touched

·9· ·with cannabis. I thought it was frankincense and

10· ·myrrh, but I could be wrong.

11·  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Let's stay on

12· ·point here. Will you?

13· · · · MS. DILLER:· Okay. I just wanted to share with

14· ·  you real quickly, again, just some of the

15· ·  latest data that I have and we'll leave it

16· ·at that. And our concern again is the youth and the

17· ·community.

18·  ·   I just got statistics this week from the

19· ·Churchill County Sheriff's office on minors. They

20· ·had 44 arrests for possession of marijuana since

21· ·July 1st, 2017.

22· · · · That was included the police department and

23· ·the Churchill County Sheriff's department arrest

24· ·records. And then the latest thing we just got was

25· ·the youth risk behavior survey.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 133
  ·   They do that every other year on even

·6·

·1·

·2· ·year. It is administered by the CDC and then UNR

·3· ·does the statistics. So in 2015 our past 30-day use

·4· ·of marijuana for our Churchill County high school

·5· ·students was 15 percent.

 The 27th statistic that just came out was 26.6

·7· ·percent. So that's a 98 percent increase. I just

·8· ·wanted to share those numbers with you. Thank you

·9· ·for all the work you've done and listening to

10· ·everybody and I appreciate everything you do.

11·  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Is there any questions for

12· ·Andrea? Okay.

13·

14·

15·

  ·   MS. ZELLER:· Thanks.

    · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

  ·   MR. MCNEEL:· Mr. Mayor, I want to speak

16· ·neutral tonight.

17· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Okay.

18· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I just want to state some facts.

19· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We're going to need your name

20· ·read into the record.

21· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I'd like to say that my name is

22· ·Steve McNeel. I can be reached at 510 West Williams

23· ·Avenue, Fallon, 89406.

24·

25·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

  · MR. MCNEEL:· I just want to state some

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 134

·6·

·1· ·facts because a lot of people got up here and

·2· ·stated facts but the fact is when they state

·3· ·these facts about drug abuse and all these people

·4· ·have drug abuse, I just want to state one fact, a

·5· ·few facts.

 One fact is that all the facts that they have

·7· ·said tonight had nothing to do with the Green Cross

·8· ·Farmacy's customers. Those are not their customers.

·9· ·All of those facts are fine, but they're none of

10· ·those are Fallon customers. Okay?

11·       So, 46 percent of the people here in this

12· ·town voted they wanted recreational marijuana; 46

13· ·  percent. So if you have 10 percent that's neutral,

14· ·then the majority wants it.

15· · · · All right? No children buy marijuana at the

16· ·Green Cross Farmacy. No children. So all the facts

17· ·on the children were from the black market.

18· · · · That's something that the Green Cross Farmacy

19· ·is trying to get rid of in Fallon to make life

20· ·better. The state law passed recreational

21· ·marijuana. Green Cross Farmacy has been in business

22· ·in Fallon for three years.

23· · · · Drugs are here in Fallon. They are not from

24· ·the Green Cross Farmacy. They were here before they

25· ·got here and they're going to be here if they ever

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 135

·4·

·9·

·1· ·leave. The drugs in Fallon are from the people in

·2· ·Fallon, not the Green Cross Farmacy. So we need to

·3· ·stop that.

 We need to stop the Fallon black market.

·5· ·Forty-four arrests, none of those were the Green

·6· ·Cross Farmacy customers. So let's just, 

·7· ·so when we talk facts, let's talk facts. So thank

·8· ·you.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you.

10·  · MR. RICHARDSON:· Can I ask you a couple of

11·   ·questions Mr. McNeel? I was reviewing the

12·   ·minutes from the last meeting and Mr.

13·   ·Mitchell testified that it cost $150 to get a

14· ·  medical marijuana card.

15·    · And I believe everything I've seen it's

16· ·a $50 charge to get it.

17·  ·   MR. MCNEEL:· Right, but you got to go 

18· ·the doctor usually charges $100 and then it's $50

19· ·for the state fee. That's where they get that

20· ·figure.

21· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· So you're estimating that a

22· ·doctor will cover -- charge $100 and it won't be

23· ·covered by any insurance or --

24· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right.

25· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· ·-- insurance will not cover

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 136

·2·

·8·

·1· ·that.

·    MR. MCNEEL:· And far as getting a medical

·3· ·marijuana card, for the record, if you are a

·4· ·military person  and

·5· ·you're getting veteran benefits, and you get a

·6· ·medical marijuana card, all your benefits are

·7· ·canceled immediately.

 That's the reason these people cannot get

·9· ·those cards. It's very important. That's very

10· ·  important to the people in the military

11· ·cannot get those cards. If they get a medical

12· ·marijuana card, all their benefits are out the

13· ·door. All of them.

14· · · · So that's the reason they can't get them.

15· ·That's the reason they're trying to make this

16· ·recreational. It's very important for those people.

17·   ·They lose all their benefits.

18· · · · MS. FROST:· You're stating active duty

19· ·military lose their benefits?

20· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Anybody. Anybody in the military

21· ·that gets a medical marijuana card -- if you're in

22· ·the military, number one, you're going to get a

23· ·dishonorable discharge.

24· · · · MS. FROST:· Correct, but we have veterans as

25· ·well that are no longer in the military that are

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 137

·2·

·5·

·1· ·former military.

 MR. MCNEEL:· Right. Right, but they get a

·3· ·medical marijuana card they lose all their 
benefits,

·4· ·period. Period.

 They throw them right out of the program. So

·6· ·if they're getting free medicine from

·7· ·the VA and they get a medical marijuana card,

·8· ·they're out.· ·MS. FROST:· How does the VA have

·9· ·access to that information if it's through the

10· ·state of Nevada?

11· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· You tell me. It doesn't matter.

12· ·If you get a medical marijuana card -- I'll tell

13· ·you about -- let me -- let me tell you, this is

14· ·facts.

15·

16·

17·

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Let's answer the question.

  · MR. MCNEEL:· Okay. The fact don't matter.

  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· You have a business, you

18· ·you need to know how you run it.

19· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right, I know [inaudible].

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We don't. Remember we don't

21· ·regulate it so we don't know those things.

22· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· That's correct, but you do

23· ·regulate the permits. So you do --

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· The business license.

25· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right, that you do regulate that.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 138
·1· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Of which -- of which you've

·2· ·reported hardly any income to us because you get --

·3· ·you've been paying a $50 permit [inaudible] this

·4· ·year.

·5· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right. Right.

·6· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So for two years we're getting

·7· ·$50.

·8· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right, but if we get the --

·9· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Which means you have no sales.

10· ·That's the lowest sale possible in the city of

11· ·Fallon.

12· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right. So if we get a

13·   ·recreational permit those figures Fallon

14· ·will get about $100,000 a year [inaudible]. With my

15· ·calculations --

16· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Other than a $50 permit.

17· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Okay. The state of Nevada --

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I know that part.

19· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I know. The state of Nevada has

20· ·said that if a city or a jurisdiction gives a

21· ·medical marijuana license to a dispensary, they're

22· ·allowed to charge them 3 perfect of the gross

23· ·sales. That would -- that would be -- in this town

24· ·it'd be about $100,000.

25· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· I can tell you the max sale on a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 139
·1· ·$50 permit, the very max sale is $24,999. That's

·2· ·the max sale on a $50 permit, which is what you've

·3· ·been paying for two years. Answer her question

·4· ·about the veteran.

·5· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Three years.

·6· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· You've upped it this year in 18.

·7· ·You've -- you're paying a little more now for some

·8· ·reason, but answer her question about the veteran.

·9· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Okay. What was the question?

10· · · · MS. FROST:· If they --

11· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We're running on a system here.

12· ·They pay us a business license and they don't have

13· ·a lot of privileges. You pay us whatever.

14· · · · You could do $1 million and pay a $50 permit

15· ·and they don't come in and out of your books, like

16· ·the state. Anybody has a business license; city of

17· ·  Fallon pays whatever they think -- they feel

18· ·is right to pay us.

19· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right.

20· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So you could pay us $50 for the

21· ·rest of your life, we're not here to monitor you.

22·

23·

24·

  ·   MR. MCNEEL:· I don't want to pay.

    · MR. TEDFORD:· Answer her question.

  ·   MS. FROST:· My question again is if the

25· ·  medical marijujuana cards are through the

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 140

·3·

·5·

·7·

·1· ·state of Nevada, how does the military know that

·2· ·these veterans have a medical marijuana card?

 MR. MCNEEL:· Well, number one, 

·4· ·they drug test them. So if they come up positive --

 MS. FROST:· They don't drug test veterans to

·6· ·my knowledge.

 

 MR. MCNEEL:· Yes. They do. Yes. They do. They

·8· ·drug test them. Well, if you're getting benefits

·9· ·and they want to drug test you, they will drug test.10·

11·  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· Is that what is that based on,

12· ·  federal law, based on administrative regulation

13· ·  or what how do they take benefits away

14· ·from a veteran is -- what's the legal basis to

15· ·that?

16·    · MR. MCNEEL:· If you get caught with

17· ·  marijuana in your system you lose your all

18· ·your benefits.

19· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· So you don't have -- you

20· ·don't have a -- it's a legal question. I'm not sure

21· ·you have the information to ask that, but there's

22· ·got to be a legal basis for them to take away to

23· ·that.

24· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I'm not an attorney. There's

25· ·plenty of attorneys here that can answer that if

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 141

·2·

·5·

·6·

·1· ·you'd like the answer to that.

 MR. ERICKSON:· If they can drug test them it

·3· ·doesn't matter if it's medicinal or

·4· ·recreational, correct?

 MR. MCNEEL:· Right. That's correct.

 MR. ERICKSON:· So the point's not made. I

·7· ·mean, no matter what we do if you're a veteran

·8· ·you're saying that you're subject to losing your

·9· ·benefits because of marijuana.

10·  ·   MR. RICHARDSON:· I have one additional,

11· ·  one additional question. You know, reading

12· ·  those minutes several times it was alluded to

13· ·  in the minutes that a lot of people

14· ·were willing to pay a higher price for recreational

15· ·  marijuana than medical and not get a medical

16· ·marijuana card which is cheaper.

17· · · · Can you talk about your price structure? Why

18· ·would recreational be more expensive than medical?

19· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· It's all in the sales tax. The

20· ·  price of the merchandise is all the same.

21· · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· So just the sales tax

22· ·percentage.

23·    · MR. MCNEEL:· Right. If you don't

24· ·have a medical marijuana card, you got to pay a 20

25· ·  percent sales tax.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 142
 · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· Okay. Thanks for the

·3·

·4·

·1·

·2· ·clarification. It wasn't clear.

 MR. MCNEEL:· Thank you.

 MR. TEDFORD:· How do we know when, I guess

·5· ·when to consider you came up here, I

·6· ·wasn't going to ask you one question tonight but

·7· ·you came up here so you invited them. How do we

·8· ·know with -- if recreational -- Senator Segerblom

·9· ·here, you know, very eloquently stated

10· ·there's supposed to be a marriage of these two. And

11· ·  the marriage is a little different, I

12· ·believe, in a small town than in a larger city.

13·  ·   How do we know when you have a

14· ·concentration of sales in one location that what

15· ·you have in small town, this is what happens in a

16· ·small town.

17· · · · You grow up here and someone goes to the

18· ·minute market, or in the old days, the gas station

19· ·that sold liquor, and they buy beer for the young

20· ·kid, younger kids and then that's when we do

21· ·regulate. Believe me, that's when the police do get

22· ·involved --

23· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Sure.

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· ·-- is they catch all of these

25· ·  kids. And I think that's kind of a concern,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 143

·2·

·6·

·1· ·this marriage of the two.

 Now, it's kind of like the minute market.

·3· ·Steve, you know you have this person

·4· ·that either has a card which has been a

·5· ·concern.

 That's why a lot of these stats people are

·7· ·talking about, and maybe some people are missing

·8· ·that, of the year, the last year when your sales

·9· ·maybe have picked up here on West Williams that

10·   ·didn't occur when you were on East Center.

11· · · · Some people didn't even know you were here.

12· ·Now they know you're here now on the biggest

13· ·fastest street we have, biggest traffic count. You

14·   ·know, let me finish. I get to talk now.

15·  ·so they go buy the marijuana with the

16· ·card, or once recreation, now without even a card

17· ·just being over 21 you get to go in there and buy

18· ·it and you give it to the high school kid, which

19· ·kind of is the story already happening.

20·  ·   That's happened and that's why some of

21· ·the problems are happening at the school. That's

22· ·why you have some school related people here

23· ·tonight. So that marriage is buying the beer for

24· ·the kids on Friday night, now you buy the marijuana

25· ·for the kids, the adult. We're not talking to 50-

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 144

·2·

·8·

·1· ·or 60-year-old person.

 We're talking to 20-year-olds going in and

·3· ·buying, or -- or maybe the adults leaving around

·4· ·the house like they steal their liquor cabinet and

·5· ·give it to the kids. So that's the concern, the

·6· ·marriage of the two. I'm already a little

·7· ·concerned about it happening now.

 The council thinks they did the right

·9· ·thing at the time allowing medical, people getting

10· ·help. Okay? This is a helping community. Took some

11· ·criticism for it. Okay?

12· · · · But felt like they helped and now this

13· ·marriage, that makes them nervous because these

14· ·stories are out there that it's turned into the

15· ·kids getting liquor on a Friday or Saturday night

16· ·they're getting marijuana now.

17· · · · But this they can save up because it's -- no.

18· ·No. No. I get to finish. They saved up all week.

19·   ·Okay? So that's the dilemma facing us now.

20· ·  It's a little different thing. It's something

21· ·we don't know much about.

22· · · · So that's why we have this hearing to hear

23· ·  from people. Totally kind of going down the

24· ·line because it somehow it got out there that they

25· ·turned it down May 1st. It says -- [inaudible] are

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 145

·4·

·9·

·1· ·talking about last week when we just -- staff

·2· ·directed us to get some kind of ordinance

·3· ·form for tonight so we could have this hearing.

 And half the town thinks we've already turned

·5· ·it down. What the heck are you have in another

·6· ·meeting for, you know? Can't you decide? Hey, we

·7· ·didn't decide. That's what tonight's about. So you

·8· ·see the dilemma.

 MR. MCNEEL:· Oh, I see [inaudible].

10·  ·    MR. TEDFORD:· We give it to the kids. So

11· ·  kids aren't getting drugs, the drug

12· ·guys are giving them drugs.

13· · · · No. It's you guys. You're the drug guys in

14· ·town. So people tell me sometimes, no. These guys

15· ·aren't bad guys, they're medical marijuana guys.

16· ·You see what I mean?

17· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· [Inaudible].

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· So I explained you what's on my

19· ·  heart and what I'm thinking

20· ·about. How do you get -- how do you, how do you

21· ·  find a way through this? And sometimes it's

22· ·difficult. It's difficult.

23· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Right. What I don't understand is

24· ·  why Robert told -- you know, when I first

25· ·got this permit and I came and saw you, I came and

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 146

·3·

·5·

·7·

·1· ·saw the chief of police. You were the chief of

·2· ·police at the time, right?

 MR. TEDFORD:· I did -- I did some [inaudible]

·4· ·in the hall. We didn't meet because you

 MR. MCNEEL:· I know. I wanted to see you but

·6· ·      MR. TEDFORD:· ·-- you don't need to meet. You

·8· ·just get a business license because it's legal. A

·9· ·lot of people forget it's legal in Nevada. It's

10· ·  legal in Nevada. That's why -- where's Allen. 

11· ·  It's legal in Nevada just like beer is legal in

12· ·Nevada. You see what I mean now?

13·  ·   So when you [inaudible] someone might

14· ·confuse that it's illegal. It's not illegal. It's

15· ·legal in Nevada. Just didn't get [inaudible]

16· ·illegal here. But we're in the state of Nevada for

17· ·heaven sakes.

18· · · · Read your history books. [Inaudible] is a good

19· ·one. So, anyway, that's my last question. You can

20· ·sit down and be happier. You ask me something else

21· ·it's going to lead me somewhere else you may not

22· ·want to go.

23· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· That's all right. You know, this

24· n ·is our last meeting. So I'm just curious

25· ·why when I got that permit I came and asked you

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 147

·5·

·1· ·guys if you wanted it, Robert said we're going to

·2· ·treat this like any other business. Well, that was

·3· ·great up until now. It's not being treated like any

·4· ·other business.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Well, that's because state law

·6· ·is different. The state law treats

·7· ·them both differently. Medical has its own NRS

·8· ·statute. Maybe we need to have a symposium held by

·9· ·the Senator.

10· · · · Recreational has another statute. Okay? It's

11· ·very simple. [Inaudible] isn't that true? Both

12· ·different statutes. Come on, you're in a business

13· ·don't try to act like you're some naive guy here.

14· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I'm pretty naive.

15· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· You're not. You're a pretty

16· ·smart guy trying to act like you got wool put over

17· ·your eyes and you don't. So don't fool me up. I've

18· ·  been fooled by a lot of people but you are

19· ·not going to be one of them.

20· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· I'm not trying to fool you. I'm

21· ·not trying to fool you, I'm just, you know, I'm

22· ·just caught, you know, between a rock and a hard

23· ·place.

24· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· It's getting late here for you

25· ·and I. It's past 10 o'clock. I should be on my way

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 148
·1· ·to bed or watching the Giant Game by now.

·2· · · · MR. MCNEEL:· Okay. All right. Well, thank you,

·3· ·mayor. Thank you.

·4· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you, sir.

·5· · · · MR. NATHAN:· Can I speak?

·6· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· No. No. No. No. No. We're not

·7· ·going back there.

·8· · · · MR. NATHAN:· I'm not going backwards I'm going

·9· ·forward.

10·

11·

  ·    MR. TEDFORD:· No. We're on neutral. Sorry.

  ·    MR. NATHAN:· II know you just wanted to

12· ·[inaudible].

13· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· It's 10:07. They're not coming

14· ·back up here or stuff all tonight that hasn't been

15·   ·true, but Nathan is going to be fine. Both

16· ·sides people have said things that are on the edge,

17· ·we're okay. That being said, I'm going to close the

18· ·comments.

19· · · · Does the council have any questions of anyone

20· ·that talked tonight? Do you have a question,

21· ·Nathan? I give you 20 seconds and if you incite

22· ·somebody over here, I don't know what I can do. I

23· ·can't do anything.

24· · · · MR. NATHAN:· [Inaudible]. According to the US

25· ·Department of Veteran Affairs, the first point is

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 149
·1· ·veterans will not be denied VA benefits because of

·2· ·marijuana use.

·3· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· God bless their hearts. Okay. We

·4· ·good with that? Ardea, do you need 20 seconds?

·5· ·Okay. Let's close this public hearing and I'll tell

·6· ·you a little how seven is going to go.

·7· · · · A reminder, I said at the beginning I'll allow

·8· ·very little public comment prior to seven then the

·9· ·council is going to deliberate. They'll consider

10· ·all comments that you all made during six. Okay?

11· · · · Everything you said. Got people [inaudible]

12· ·and out here that are just like me. There's no need

13· ·to repeat anything you said. Seriously, they've

14· ·heard ya.

15· · · · They're really good people and they have the

16·   ·heart of the community and business in mind

17· ·and are not trying to chase business out of town.

18·   ·That's just not what they do. The council

19· ·is going to deliberate as they see fit tonight.

20·    · They may ask for clarification or 

21· ·  further comment from anybody or they may not.

22· ·And then the council is going to adopt or not this

23· ·bill or they may amend it in any respect prior to

24· ·its adoption.

25· · · · I hate to say this with the Senator in

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 150

·8·

·1· ·attendance but it's like a mini legislative session

·2· ·that's been going on for two weeks and we'll

·3· ·tonight hear so they'll discuss it a bit.

·4· ·Does anybody have any -- any -- any small comment

·5· ·they want to make other than the 22nd today

·6· ·[inaudible] -- Nathan? You can't come up here

·7· ·anymore.

 Okay. We're good. Let's go to seven. The

·9· ·council is going to deliberate at this time on the

10· ·possible adoption of bill number 780 as ordinance

11· ·number 761.

12· · · · It's an ordinance amending the Fallon muni

13· ·code to prohibit marijuana cultivation facilities,

14· ·marijuana testing facilities, marijuana product

15· ·  manufacturing facilities, marijuana 

16· ·distributors, retail marijuana stores, non-medical,

17· ·medical marijuana, independent testing labs,

18· ·  medical marijuana cultivation facilities and

19· ·facilities for the production of edible marijuana

20· ·products or marijuana infused products in the city

21· ·  of Fallon and for other matters properly

22· ·related there too.

23· · · · This is for possible action. Okay council,

24· ·  this is where you all have a chance to

25· ·deliberate. You have a question for me during

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 151

·3·

·8·

·1· ·deliberations I'm more than happy to respond.

·2· ·but this is your time, not mine.

 So I turn seven over to you all and then I'll

·4· ·let you go for a while and then you have before you

·5· ·some different things you can do as you know how to

·6· ·do this. Thank you all for your patience tonight,

·7· ·as I thank all of you for your patience for coming.

 It's an important decision and always

·9· ·evolving life of the city of Fallon as any other

10· ·  community in our state. And before we start,

11· ·you know, there's some things said about our state

12· ·  and I believe our state is a state. I go to

13· ·places and talk about how money needs to go South

14· ·just as it does North.

15· · · · We have to think as a state not as Churchill

16· ·County or the North. And that's how we get things

17· ·solved. And I've had the opportunity to be friends

18· ·  with those mayors in Las Vegas and Henderson

19· ·and Mesquite and Boulder City and I know their

20· ·problems and they know mine.

21·  ·   And, I feel very happy about that.

22· ·And so I know we've voted against it. I know a lot

23· ·of rural counties did and someone mentioned that,

24· ·and boy, I know those things already. This council

25· ·does.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 152
  ·   So we have it and we deal with it as

·5·

·9·

·1·

·2· ·best we can and it doesn't make

·3· ·them bad or us bad on a variety of issues. It just

·4· ·makes us think a little differently sometimes.

 And the best thing we can do is try to think

·6· ·alike on as many things as we can together. And

·7· ·that has helped us succeed as a city in trying to

·8· ·think like Reno as Ardea and I talked about.

  · And sometimes we do the same

10· ·things and sometimes we just think differently and

11· ·  it's okay. That doesn't make them any

12· ·better or us any better. So council, come on let's

13· ·go.

14·  ·   MS. FROST:· Okay. I'll start. Well, I'd

15·   ·like to thank everybody for coming out tonight.

16· ·  We appreciate you being here to voice your

17·   ·opinions. I think we all listened carefully to

18· ·what everybody had to say.

19·  ·   I want to make it very clear I know

20· ·there's been some statements made that I don't

21· ·  believe the Green Cross Farmacy 

22· ·sells to anybody under the age of 21. I think you

23· ·run a clean operation, but I am concerned that when

24· ·  adults get their hands on these products 

25· ·  that children will also be getting their hands

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 153

·3·

·7·

·1· ·on these products, not directly through you but

·2· ·through those adults that are irresponsible.

 Our community voted against

·4· ·recreational marijuana and I think

·5· ·there's a distinction because our community voted

·6· ·in favor of medical marijuana.

 The research I've looked at, I think

·8· ·there's a lot of questions, that are not

·9· ·answered at this point in time regarding the

10·   ·effects of marijuana, the long-term effects on

11· ·young people and on adults.

12·  ·  I know there is promise and potential

13· ·for medical marijuana to help people with things

14·   ·like epilepsy, possibly multiple sclerosis, and

15· ·a lot of that goes back to the CBD oil, from my

16· ·research and so forth.

17·  ·   Also I'm going back to the 

18·   statement about the federal government and

19· ·medical marijuana has been approved in, from my

20· ·research, 29 states.

21·  ·   And if my figures are correct, I used to teach

22· ·government so I hope I am correct, that equals 58

23· ·  Senators. That 58 percent of the Senators are from

24· ·m  states that have legalized medical marijuana. I

25· ·also did the figuring.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 154
  · That's 265 House members. That's 61 percent of

·7·

·1·

·2· ·the House. Now, where I get some concern. I think

·3· ·I think we're on safe ground

·4· ·there in some ways because I think the

·5· ·federal government is possibly moving to do more

·6· ·research in the area of medical marijuana.

 And I believe, the federal government has

·8· ·backed off in spending money to go after

·9· ·medical marijuana, in states where

10· ·they have legalized it. Now, with recreational we

11· ·have nine States.

12·      That's only 18 Senators, 18 percent. 92 House

13· ·members, most of those are California. That's 21

14· ·  percent. So those are some figures that I look at.

15·   ·Now, the mayor and our staff members have to

16·   ·deal with the federal government in a lot of

17· ·different areas.

18·  ·   And that makes me a little uncomfortable

19· ·when we're in the minority of states that have

20·   ·recreational marijuana.· Again, I still have

21· ·safety and health concerns.

22·  ·   Again, I think our community does not want

23· ·  a recreational marijuana facility. So I'll go

24· ·  ahead and make a motion. I move to

25· ·adopt bill number 780 as introduced and without

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 155

·2·

·4·

·7·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·amendment. I'm going to read the rest of it.

 MR. RICHARDSON:· Before we pass for a second I

·3· ·want to make some comments.

 MR. TEDFORD:· Let's wait for [inaudible] where

·5· ·we move with that motion. We can--we'll hold that

·6· ·motion.

  MR. RICHARDSON:· Okay.

  MS. FROST:· I withdraw the motion then.

  MR. RICHARDSON:: Okay, yeah. There's

10· ·definitely arguments on both sides. I mean, it's a

11· ·  big issue obviously.

12·  · And there's a lot of passion in this room.

13· ·Just so you -- a little disclosure about my

14· ·background. Professionally I work for the

15· ·department of public safety. I'm a lieutenant with

16· ·the adult, parole and probation.

17· · · · I'm also on the board of directors for New

18· ·Frontier Treatment center and I previously worked

19· ·  at Rite of Passage for a juvenile

20· ·rehabilitation facility here in Nevada many, many

21· ·years ago.

22·  · So I do have a lot of background on this

23· ·  issue, and also attended many marijuana

24· ·  symposiums with presenters on both sides,

25· ·  just in my capacity as an employee with

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 156

·2·

·5·

·1· ·the state, for GPS.

· MMy concerns are the way this law was

·3· ·enacted and created, it's given us

·4· ·an either or situation.

· Don't believe that we are going to rule

·6· ·that recreational marijuana will be illegal in the

·7· ·state of Nevada and our local law enforcement will

·8· ·be able to go after adults if they find them in

·9· ·possession of marijuana or if they're even growing

10· ·it.

11·  ·   That's not going to happen. The only

12· ·  way that's going to happen is if we approve a

13· ·  special permit or zoning for a business

14· ·entity to sell, that would prohibit private growers

15· ·in every community.

16·  ·   I know I heard some testimony about

17· ·you know, I used to live in this, I think it was

18·   ·Mr. Waite, you know, having marijuana around your

19· ·  house and your neighborhoods,

20· ·that is a real concern.

21· · · · And it's a concern to people I've talked to.

22· ·I've talked to a lot of people in my neighborhood

23· ·and throughout this community that work at various

24· ·professional levels.

25·  ·   And some of them, they're not as

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 157

·5·

·1· ·passionate as the group here in opposition of

·2· ·recreational marijuana, but they do have

·3· ·big concerns about uncontrolled private growth that

·4· ·can happen anywhere.

 Around schools, around parks, and there is not

·6· ·one thing the city can do about that. What 

·7· ·are we to say to a homeowner that's trying to enjoy

·8· ·their backyard when a proficient marijuana

·9· ·grower is growing marijuana on the other side of

10· ·his fence and he can and smell that pungent smell

11· ·of marijuana everyday coming from the backyard.

12·     That's a reality. Marijuana 

13· ·  growing and growth is a big process. Entities

14· ·now [inaudible] also will be able to create and

15· ·make their own edibles in any form or fashion

16· ·without any control.

17· · · · Marijuana will be untested and THC levels. So

18· ·I want to mention the marijuana back in the day and

19· ·the marijuana today is different and there's no way

20· ·to know that [inaudible] certain strains and people

21· ·privately that are allowed to do that.

22· · · · I'm concerned that a business person may come

23· ·  come into Fallon and decide to hold workshops on

24· ·how to grow your own marijuana in your house and we

25· ·lose control of neighborhoods, home values and all

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 158

·4·

·1· ·those things. And we can't -- we have to tell

·2· ·neighbors that there's nothing we can do because we

·3· ·don't have that business [inaudible].

 But yet again, that was my position last time

·5· ·and I'm hearing a little bit more different and

·6· ·more testimony on the reasons why not to promote

·7· ·it. I was recently in [inaudible] last weekend and

·8· ·coming in to the town of [inaudible], which is my

·9· ·County, they have approved marijuana.

10· ·recreational marijuana.

11· · · · And when you come in there's a big sign that's

12· ·in green that points you to, you know, the entity

13· ·  of the business that's selling it. And to me

14· ·what an eyesore, and it kind of now I get that

15· ·image in my head that's what [inaudible] about.

16· · · · And I think that's what people -- you guys are

17· ·saying and people in Fallon, is one, we don't want

18· ·that image. It's on our main street. And someone

19· ·said, you know, the children, the juveniles, they

20· ·don't understand.

21· · · · If we say yes, you can do it. It's like we're

22· ·saying yes. In an inadvertent way that marijuana is

23· ·okay and it's safe and there's not a problem with

24· ·it.

25· · · · Well, I do -- because I do work for New

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 159

·4·

·1· ·Frontier as a board member and I used to be, 

·2· ·was a former state licensed counselor, I 

·3· ·don't like that message being sad.

· So we're really rolling the dice on do we hope

·5· ·we don't have problems in our neighborhoods or do

·6· ·we want to protect our children like

·7· ·I'm hearing, in a way, where we say no

·8· ·to businesses so we don't have that on the front

·9· ·end of our community?

10· We're not like Reno, Las Vegas, San Diego. I 

11· ·  mean, there's communities that have accepted it

12· ·  and they have the signage, they have

13· ·the businesses, but they have the ability to move

14· ·and get away from it and live in different

15· ·neighborhoods and not be exposed to that and not

16· ·that certain area identifying that's who they are.

17·    · In Fallon, it's a different story. We

18· ·if we get one business or two businesses, it really

19· ·impacts how we feel about this community and how

20· ·  people come in and their first impression of

21· ·of Fallon, Nevada should not be a big green sign

22· ·pointing here that marijuana is legal now, here's

23· ·the recreational dispensary.

24· · · · And my fear now after listening is yes. Maybe

25· ·there will be people deciding to drive in to Fallon

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 160

·2·

·8·

·1· ·just for the reason to buy it.

  · That's a legitimate

·3· ·concern. I know when finally it opens up, and if we

·4· ·don't have one, I'm anticipating that people that,

·5· ·in Fallon, that choose to decide to use marijuana

·6· ·they'll make that drive, and that's what

·7· ·finally we'll be known about.

 That's where they sell pot. And that becomes

·9· ·their image. And so I'm going to change my position

10· ·  from last time and I'm going to support this

11· ·or this.

12· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Don't do that, please. I asked

13· ·you not to. No. I'll use this and I don't like to

14· ·use this. Go ahead.

15·  ·   MR. ERICKSON:· [Inaudible] lady and I

16· ·don't think I've ever met anybody that was so

17· ·passionate about her family and such an advocate

18· ·for her children and her grandchildren.

19·  ·   And I'd also like to acknowledge that I

20· ·was elected to the council here 35 years ago. At

21·   ·that time, there was a grandfather and his

22· ·  partner, Jack Diehl over our city attorneys they served

23· ·  this city for over three decades and 

24· ·their service was extraordinary.

25· · · · And that was before his distinguished career

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 161

·5·

·9·

·1· ·as a district judge here. So, I appreciate the

·2· ·contributions that your family has made to our

·3· ·community and I've enjoyed your friendship over the

·4· ·years.

 I'd like to start off with, there was some

·6· ·comment in the flyer, that Green Cross

·7· ·Farmacy, provided the community in solicitation

·8· ·for their city meeting.

 And in the comment, it, mentioned

10· ·  Councilwoman's Frost and my vote

11· ·  no because it was legal under federal law. And

12· ·that this was a contradiction.

13·  ·   A contradiction with our vote when we

14·    approved the medical

15· ·  marijuana issue, which was actually 

16·   ·an issue on zoning, and the thousand-foot

17· ·limit from a school.

18·  ·   Federal law is based on the 1970

19· ·Controlled Substance Act. And marijuana is listed

20· ·as a Schedule I substance that needed to be

21· ·controlled for the reasons it has a high potential

22· ·for abuse and has absolutely no acceptable medical

23· ·use.

24·  ·   The comparable, substances are ecstasy,

25· ·marijuana, heroin, and LSD. Schedule II, which

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 162

·5·

·1· ·allows for prescriptions for medical

·2· ·use under a doctor's order, is cocaine, meth,

·3· ·Oxycontin. SO, what's changed in the last 48

·4· ·years? Basically nothing.

 That federal statute is on the

·6· ·books. It's a federal crime to possess,

·7· ·manufacture, grow marijuana, either

·8· ·recreational or medical. So there is inconsistency

·9· ·there, how can you approve one and not the other?

10· · · · But there has been some movement recently, and

11· ·by recently I mean in the last few years, and this

12· ·  was alluded to a little bit by the

13· ·  gentlemen that spoke from San Diego.

14·  ·   There's a Rohrabacher-Farr amendment that

15· ·has been proposed. The first time it was proposed

16· ·in 2001. It was proposed for every standing bill

17· ·before the Congress eight times total until it

18· ·finally passed in 2014.

19· · · · So we've seen some movement in the creation of

20· ·  the marijuana industry starting in about

21· ·2013, 2014. The other thing that occurred during

22· ·that period of time was the Cole memorandum, which

23· ·actually was a memorandum issued by a deputy,

24· ·excuse me, a deputy attorney general in 2013 to all

25· ·50 US attorneys in all 50 states.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 163
  ·   The memorandum basically said, it didn't

·9·

·1·

·2· ·demand, it didn't dictate, it basically said that

·3· ·your priorities for utilizing your resources in

·4· ·your office should be, not toward, in

·5· ·states where marijuana was either recreational

·6· ·or medical approved, should not be toward the

·7· ·enforcement of the federal law in those

·8· ·issues.

 As we all know, the Cole Amendment was

10· ·rejected by our current attorney general on his

11· ·third day in office. So it no longer exists. Now,

12· ·that amendment covered all marijuana use. The

13· ·Rohrabacher-Farr amendment is different.

14·  · It restricts, and I'll read it here, it

15· ·prevents the department of justice from spending

16· ·federal funds to prosecute marijuana related

17· ·activities if they are permitted under state

18· ·specific medical marijuana law.

19· · · · It lists all 26 states that have approved

20· ·medical marijuana law. It further states that this

21· ·law, this amendment does not cover recreational

22· ·marijuana.

23· · · · So there is a distinct difference at the

24· ·federal level of enforcement policy as to whether

25· ·or not, not people that are using, selling,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 164

·5·

·1· ·manufacturing, medical marijuana, and the use

·2· ·of federal resources to prosecute those folks and

·3· ·enforce the Controlled Substance Act

·4· ·as it pertains to medical marijuana.

 Now, that amendment was first passed in 2014.

·6· ·It's been renewed in every budget cycle since then

·7· ·a total of 11 times, the latest being in the

·8· ·current budget which was passed in, I believe,

·9· ·March and expires in September.

10· · · · That was passed by the Senate and the house

11· ·and signed by the president of United States,

12· ·Donald Trump.

13· · · · So there's a relatively, a strong protection

14·    ·against a recognition, I believe, by the

15· ·Congress that there is medical benefit for medical

16· ·marijuana and a recognition that 29 states have,

17· ·  have passed medical marijuana statutes.

18· · · · But it specifically excludes any protection

19· ·for recreational marijuana in the seven states that

20· ·have passed that.

21·    · That being said, the reason why

22· ·this is important to me is not for the governance

23· ·of the city of Fallon, it's for the perception that

24· ·we send out to the community, that if you, under

25· ·  the current state law, where we have,

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 165

·5·

·9·

·1· ·basically legalized at the state level

·2· ·with certain restrictions, both medical marijuana

·3· ·and recreational marijuana, the perception is

·4· ·marijuana is legal. Marijuana is not legal.

 Marijuana, if you're caught with marijuana,

·6· ·you're still subject to prosecution under the

·7· ·marijuana statutes, and they are strong statutes.

·8· ·The penalties are severe.

  · And as far as judges go, they have very 
little

10· ·discretion in sentencing based on the mandatory,

11· ·federal mandatory sentencing act.

12· · · · So there's a danger to our citizens that have

13· ·the impression that what they're doing is all

14· ·right, but if they're caught by the DEA or another

15· ·federal agency, the consequences can be grave.

16· · · · There is a continuing danger with the

17·   ·Rohrabacher-Farr legislation in that sometime

18· ·that legislation might not be attached to a

19· ·standing bill, and then that goes away and we go

20· ·right back to that.

21· · · · The other point I'd like to make is that

22· ·perception matters. And the testimony here today

23  · ·  indicates that there's a perception in the

24· ·  community that as a result of the

25·   ·passage of the petitions and

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 166

·5·

·1· ·the legalization under certain conditions

·2· ·of marijuana within the state of Nevada, 

·3· ·that it's legal and the perception is that if it's

·4· ·legal, it's okay.

· That there's no downside to

·6· ·it. That there's no possible health

·7· ·consequences or addiction consequences, or as

·8· ·thank you for your testimony doctor, 

·9· ·consequences, if you become

10· ·pregnant and have an unborn child.

11·  ·   I think the science and the

12· ·  information is still, even though it's been

13·   ·48 years, very limited. And

14·    perhaps there's even better science

15· ·internationally than there is in the United States.

16·  ·   But I think the direction of Congress on

17· ·  this issue was alluded that we were

18·   ·on the threshold of legislation that

19· ·  would remove the the marijuana from

20·    the scheduling of controlled

21· ·substances.

22·  ·   There's been 18 separate

23· ·bills in Congress right now as we speak, probably

24· ·more than that.

25· · · · There's 18 bills that can be identified in

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 167

·5·

·8·

·1· ·Congress at this time dealing with marijuana. They

·2· ·cover everything from currency regulation,

·3· ·racketeering, student loans, water rights, 

·4· ·all related issues to marijuana at this time.

 There's absolutely no way to

·6· ·project what way any of those bills will go if they

·7· ·go anywhere.

 And, so I think if we make any kind of a

·9· ·decision based on what we're projecting that

10· ·  federal law will be, or even the future of,

11·   ·state law, we come up to a new legislative

12· ·session in January, state law could very easily

13· ·change on this issue.

14·  ·   So, with that said, I think

15· ·  that I've seen the benefits of medical

16· ·marijuana. I've seen people that are very close to

17· ·  me that have suffered severe medical issues

18· ·and the only relief they got was from marijuana.

19· · · · And that was part of what prompted my vote

20·   ·before, was that I think that there

21· ·are people that benefit greatly from that medical

22· ·  marijuana. And I think that

23· ·  that said, I believe that there are

24· ·medical benefits for medical marijuana.

25·  ·   So, I myself am also planning

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 168

·3·

·8·

·1· ·to vote in favor of the adoption of the

·2· ·ordinance.

 MR. TEDFORD:· It doesn't seem like we're going

·4· ·to have much debate. So thank you for your

·5· ·positions that you laid out each of you. I

·6· ·appreciate it. Thank you for your time. You spent

·7· ·the last 45 days on this.

  We had a motion, it was withdrawn. I

·9· ·wonder, Kelly, if you wish to make that motion again

10·

11·

    · MS. FROST:· I do. I move to adopt bill

12·

 ·number 780 as introduced and without amendment.

13·

 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We have a motion to adopt bill

14·

 ·number 780 up as ordinance number 761 by

15·

 ·Councilwoman Frost. Do we have a second to that

16·

 ·motion?

17·

 · · · MR. ERICKSON:· I'll second.

18·

 · · · MR. TEDFORD:· We have a second from Councilman

19·

 ·Erickson. All in favor.

20·

21·

22·

  · MS. FROST:· Aye.

  · MR. ERICKSON:· Aye.

    MR. RICHARDSON: Aye.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· None opposed. Motion carries on

23· ·  3-0 vote to adopt bill number 780 as ordinance

24· ·number 761. Thank you all for your patience.

25· ·n Appreciate it. Drive carefully. We'll take a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 169

·2·

·7·

·1· ·short recess.

 Oh, [inaccurate] public comment on any other

·3· ·matter? Okay. We'll take staff reports, chief.

·4· ·Elsie. Thank you, Chief. Elsi, Ryan, Bryan blue

·5· ·shirt, the blue team, the blue man group, Kaitlin,

·6· ·Jane, Adrian.

  · Thank you. Gary, Mike, Robert. Lem, why the

·8· ·heck did you turn your light on? Thank you, sir.

·9· ·Lem?

10·

11·

12·

13·

     · MALE:· [Inaudible].

     · MR. TEDFORD:· He commented?

     · MALE:· He did [inaudible].

  ·    MR. TEDFORD:· Nothing from Lem, just in case

14· ·  I'm over the top of him. Nothing from Lem.

15· ·Council?

16· · · · MS. FROST:· Thank you, staff, for sticking

17· ·through this whole meeting. I appreciate it.

18· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· Thank you for occupying the

19· ·opposition row. Were you all right there the whole

20· ·time?

21·

22·

  ·   MS. FROST:· Yeah.

  ·   MR. TEDFORD:· That isn't an offer. Thank

23· ·  you all for hanging in. James, any --

24· ·and he's now going to turn his mic on. Bob,

25· ·   could you brief us on that

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 170

·2·

·3·

·5·

·6·

·8·

·9·

·1· ·[inaudible]?

 MR. ERICKSON:· Okay.
MR. TEDFORD:· Does anybody hear that, what he

·4· ·said? You all know what?

 MALE:· We all know the amendment.

 MR. TEDFORD:· What did he say? You all know?

·7· ·The ColE amendment.

  · MALE:· The Cole amendment.

  · MR. TEDFORD:· Like is it -- was it about 
West

10· ·Virginia Coal?

11· · · · MALE:· ·[Inaudible] amendment, right?

12· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· The C-o-a-l amendment.

13· · · · MALE:· That's when I go.

14· · · · MR. TEDFORD:· It's okay. All right. I think

15· ·there's nothing left and there's no need for

16  · ·  executive session. Thank you all for your hard

17·     ·work on this issue. It was a difficult evening,

18·   ·but thank you all. And, we're adjourned.

19·

20

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 171
·1

·2

·3· · · · I, Chris Naaden, a transcriber, hereby declare

·4· ·under penalty of perjury that to the best of my

·5· ·ability the above 170 pages contain a full, true

·6· ·and correct transcription of the tape-recording

·7· ·that I received regarding the event listed on the

·8· ·caption on page 1.

·9

10· · · · I further declare that I have no interest in

11· ·the event of the action.

12

13· · · · April 1, 2021

14

15
· · · · · _________________________
16· · · · Chris Naaden

17

18

19

20· ·(Fallon City Council Meeting, 6-19-18)

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 172
·1· · · HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE

·2· Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal

·3· and state laws and regulations (“Privacy Laws”) governing the

·4· protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is

·5· herebygiven to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal

·6· proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

·7· information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and

·8· disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,

·9· maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to

10· electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/

11· dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing

12· patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.

13· No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health

14· information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy

15· Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties’

16· attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will

17· make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health

18· information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,

19· including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and

20· disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and

21· applying “minimum necessary” standards where appropriate. It is

22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of

23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and

24· disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25· · · · © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)

http://www.litigationservices.com









	3-25-22 draft 1.pdf
	June 19 2018 Council Minutes (transcribed) Revised 2-2022.pdf
	Transcript
	Caption
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 158
	Page 159
	Page 160
	Page 161
	Page 162
	Page 163
	Page 164
	Page 165
	Page 166
	Page 167
	Page 168
	Page 169
	Page 170
	Page 171
	Page 172





